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          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: There are a

          3  couple pieces of legislation that we have previously

          4  held hearings on before we go to the hearing

          5  scheduled for today. We'll do this quickly.

          6                 Let me start before even getting to

          7  the vote, by bidding farewell to one of our staff

          8  who has been very, very valued, Sarah Seidman, who

          9  has done wonderful work as a policy analyst for this

         10  Committee, and who really has helped us achieve a

         11  lot in this last year and a half she's been here.

         12  And she is headed for Peru, so she's going to a more

         13  interesting place than we in here. But we thank you,

         14  Sarah, for all your wonderful work on behalf of this

         15  Committee, and on behalf of New York City. Thank

         16  you.

         17                 Yes, let's give Sarah a round of

         18  applause.

         19                 All right, I want to talk about the

         20  two bills we're about to vote on, Intro. 535-A and

         21  Intro. 543-A. These are the second and third pieces

         22  of a package at the last meeting we voted out, the

         23  first piece. These all relate to HASA and the work

         24  we need to do to help people with HIV and AIDS.

         25                 I want to thank up front the Speaker
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          2  who has been singularly supportive of this package

          3  of bills and has really helped to keep everyone

          4  focused on it. I want to thank Eric Gioia, who is a

          5  sponsor of a piece that we voted out the other day,

          6  and the Investigations Committee has taken a lead on

          7  these issues.

          8                 I obviously want to thank Council

          9  Member Chris Quinn, who is the sponsor of one of the

         10  two pieces today and who has been really a

         11  tremendous advocate on these issues. But also, you

         12  know, this has been one of the good news stories.

         13  These are tough issues and it was tough to find

         14  consensus with the Administration, but the Bloomberg

         15  Administration, HRA in particular, the Mayor's

         16  Office, all work together to create legislation that

         17  everyone could ultimately agree upon.

         18                 I want to give a special thank you to

         19  Commissioner Eggleston and her staff, David Hansel,

         20  Iris Hernandez, Elsie DelCampo, Tim Mulligan and

         21  Karen Meara, and Devon O'Hearn of the Mayor's

         22  Office. I want to thank the advocates who are deeply

         23  involved in these pieces of legislation, including

         24  Jennifer Flynn and Armen Marijen. I especially want

         25  to thank our very own Jackie Sherman, Counsel to the
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          2  Committee, who has not slept a lot in the last few

          3  days as she's pursued this legislation.

          4                 Again, we know how much we are still

          5  facing in New York City when it comes to providing

          6  support for people with HIV and AIDS. And we know

          7  that the history of the City's role leaves a lot to

          8  be desired, that's why this Council took the lead

          9  years ago by passing Local Law 49. That's why this

         10  Council has constantly been in the forefront

         11  providing oversight to make sure the clients are

         12  getting the services they need. We still have a long

         13  way to go but I think the two pieces of legislation

         14  today really help us move forward.

         15                 I'm very proud to have been the

         16  officer of 535-A. We are now going through this

         17  legislation to set up a very distinct and clear and

         18  mandatory time line for moving clients from

         19  emergency housing to permanent housing. It's going

         20  to be absolutely necessary under this legislation to

         21  get applications for permanent housing to clients in

         22  a very timely basis. It's going to be absolutely

         23  necessary that any time a permanent housing

         24  opportunity exists, that a client is moved to it

         25  immediately. And a client is given choice wherever
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          2  choice exists.

          3                 This bill says it's no longer

          4  acceptable for there to be any delay that can be

          5  avoided, because if there's any group of folks in

          6  our society who need these services and need them

          7  quickly, it's folks with HIV and AIDS, and we're

          8  finally challenging ourself by putting clear

          9  timelines and clear standards on this process.

         10                 I also think absolutely crucial is

         11  Intro. 543, Council Member Quinn's bill, which would

         12  create the kind of referral and placement system and

         13  tracking of information that we need desperately to

         14  make sure that we are doing right by our clients and

         15  to make sure we're holding ourselves to a high

         16  standard.

         17                 I'd like to offer Council Member

         18  Quinn an opportunity to say a few words up front

         19  before we take the vote.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I'm sorry?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I said I would

         22  like to offer Council Member Quinn the opportunity

         23  to say a few words on her legislation. They do this

         24  in Hollywood all the time. This is take two. Before

         25  we take a vote.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I was listening

          3  to something about the nurse's union which is

          4  important, too, and deserves my attention, but sorry

          5  about that.

          6                 Well, I also want to thank the

          7  Speaker's Office and the Administration and the

          8  Chair and also Chairperson Gioia who did the

          9  investigation most recently and the situation at

         10  HASA for helping us move now to a package of three

         11  bills on this issue. And I really want to thank

         12  Scott Melvin and Jeremy Hoffman from the Speaker's

         13  Office and my office and Jackie Sherman for all her

         14  work on this bill.

         15                 You know, these three bills together

         16  will go a long way to making the HIV/AIDS Service

         17  Administration what it should be and to make sure it

         18  delivers the services people literally need to be

         19  able to stay alive. And you know, Intro. 543-A came

         20  out of some personal experiences I had in 2000 and

         21  2001.

         22                 At that period of time, it was then

         23  called Division of AIDS Services, had completely

         24  deteriorated. It was a wreck. The HRA Commissioner

         25  was charging SRO rooms on his credit card, we're
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          2  still not sure where the Frequent Flyer miles went,

          3  but, you know, it was ridiculous. And people were

          4  getting sent from the offices told, being told when

          5  they were homeless that there was no housing for

          6  them, but the law says if you're homeless and you go

          7  to a DAS Office, they have to house you that day,

          8  that night, as long as you get there by 5:00.

          9                 We then found out people were given

         10  referral slips to addresses that did not exist, to

         11  hotels that were not at the locations. And, so, my

         12  office, working with the community, we set up a

         13  housing watch and we had people around the clock at

         14  the HASA office in my district, making sure that if

         15  somebody got a referral, we called that place, made

         16  sure it existed, it was at that address and they had

         17  a room reserved, and we just wouldn't leave the

         18  office until the last person got housed.

         19                 And what you would find, or I would

         20  find when I would go upstairs to see what was going

         21  on, is the workers, by no fault of their own, going

         22  through the yellow pages under H for Hotel. And I

         23  would start going through the yellow pages under H

         24  for Hotel and calling every SRO in my district, and

         25  that's how we found rooms for hundreds of people on
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          2  a daily basis. That is absolutely no way to run an

          3  agency designed to help homeless people with AIDS.

          4  This bill will finally require, we have a tracking

          5  and referral system. We know if, you know, X place

          6  has six rooms open and that we can send people there

          7  and how long they're open for.

          8                 It's kind of ridiculous in a way that

          9  we have to pay a bill like this because it's so

         10  absurd we would have a system that doesn't have it.

         11                 But that is the way the system still

         12  is. We cannot tolerate it. This, coupled with the

         13  time frame for housing bill of the chair, which is

         14  so important, and the reporting bill we passed

         15  yesterday will go a long way to making sure people

         16  with AIDS, homeless people with AIDS get the

         17  medically appropriate housing that the law requires.

         18                 So, I want to thank everyone for

         19  their years of hard work on this.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         21  much. And thank you, again, Council Member Quinn,

         22  for really being a leader for years on this issue.

         23  You should be very proud of this legislation today.

         24                 And, now, the moment we've all been

         25  waiting for, the clerk will call the roll.
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          2                 Council Member DeBlasio.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Yes. Oh, I'm

          4  sorry. Let me just define, we're going to couple the

          5  two bills. My apology. We're going to couple the two

          6  bills, and I vote yes on both.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Perkins.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: May I be

          9  excused to explain my vote?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Yes, you may.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: First let me

         12  commend the chair and the other sponsor, Christine

         13  Quinn, for their leadership in these two pieces of

         14  very, very important legislation, particularly as

         15  they apply to perhaps the most vulnerable of our

         16  constituents which are those homeless folks who

         17  suffer from HIV/AIDS, and anything we can do to be

         18  supportive of them is the right thing for our City

         19  and the right thing for all.

         20                 You know, in the world of HIV/AIDS,

         21  delay is denial and even worse it is very, very

         22  unfortunate it can be fatal. And, so, this

         23  legislation will effectively save lives, as well as

         24  provide the type of housing and support that they

         25  need. And, so, I vote aye on all. Thank you so much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Quinn.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I vote aye.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Brewer.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I vote aye,

          6  and proud to be a sponsor. And congratulations to

          7  everyone who participated.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Arroyo.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Aye.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of five in

         11  the affirmative, zero in the negative, and no

         12  abstentions, both items are adopted. Council

         13  members, please sign the Committee report.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you. And

         16  please hold the roll open for the remainder of the

         17  hearing for additional votes.

         18                 Thank you, everyone.

         19                 And now we move to a very important

         20  hearing on two pieces of legislation. Intro. 22-A

         21  and Intro. 57. We are going to have the

         22  Administration open up with preliminary remarks on

         23  both pieces of legislation, and then as the hearing

         24  continues from that point on, we will separate

         25  remarks by legislation so that people have an
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          2  opportunity to speak about one piece first and then

          3  the other.

          4                 First, I'd like to welcome

          5  Commissioner Patricia Gatling, and Deputy

          6  Commissioner Cliff Mulqueen of the Human Rights

          7  Commission.

          8                 I know Commissioner Gatling has a

          9  very tight schedule today, so, I believe she's

         10  making opening remarks and then leaving Mr. Mulqueen

         11  to face the firing line.

         12                 But that's what leaders do. I think

         13  that's smart. That's what good managers do.

         14                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: I also have

         15  Deputy Commissioner Lee Hudson with me, but no I am

         16  not going to leave the Counsel standing on this one.

         17  I am going to stay throughout the duration.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Does that mean

         19  we don't get to beat up on Cliff?

         20                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: Well --

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: I'll

         22  say something.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay, good.

         24                 We welcome your testimony.

         25                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: Good to be
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          2  here. Good afternoon, Council members.

          3                 I thank you, again, for the

          4  opportunity to testify about Intros No. 22-A and 57.

          5                 Regarding Intro. No. 22-A, two areas

          6  of concern include the insertion of the word

          7  "thorough" in Section 8-109(g) and the changes to

          8  the construction clause in Section 8-130. As

          9  indicated on each occasion that we have testified

         10  about this intro. The Commission conducts thorough

         11  investigation in every case. The term "thorough"

         12  however, is impossible to define and depends largely

         13  on the facts of the given case and the likelihood of

         14  uncovering relevant information by pursuing a

         15  particular investigatory avenue.

         16                 As courts have repeatedly held, the

         17  Commission has the discretion to determine the means

         18  and the methods of its investigation. Including this

         19  language, an amendment to the law would undermine

         20  every Commission decision, expose complainants,

         21  respondents, and the commission to increased

         22  litigation and divert resources from other important

         23  matters.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Please

         25  continue.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: The proposed

          3  section on construction, which advises us that

          4  existing state and federal law is the minimum

          5  standard to be applied, and instructs us to

          6  interpret the Human Rights Law more liberally than

          7  existing law without setting the actual standard,

          8  will be difficult, if not impossible, for covered

          9  entities, including City agencies and the entire

         10  legal community, including judges and the Commission

         11  itself to follow.

         12                 This proposal provides two

         13  non-complimentary directions to interpret the law.

         14  The first being to interpret the law independent of

         15  existing law, and the second being to interpret it

         16  more literally than existing law, neither clearly

         17  articulating the conduct that is prohibited.

         18                 As the Council is aware, one of the

         19  main missions of the Human Rights Commission is to

         20  educate the public regarding the law. The language

         21  of this proposal makes it impossible for the

         22  Commission to fulfill this mission since we will not

         23  be able to clearly articulate the conduct that will

         24  violate the law.

         25                 Though I understand the purpose of
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          2  this language, I would suggest that the Council

          3  address the aspects of the law to be interpreted

          4  more liberally than exiting state or federal law by

          5  proposing specific amendments instead of approaching

          6  the issue with a broad brush.

          7                 The only other change that has not

          8  been discussed during this or previous testimony is

          9  the addition of partnership status as a protected

         10  class.

         11                 We support protecting New Yorkers

         12  from being discriminated against based on their

         13  status as domestic partners. The Commission supports

         14  the spirit and purpose of Intro. No. 57. However, we

         15  are concerned about the cost of translating,

         16  producing and distributing the signs that would be

         17  required by the proposal.

         18                 Through a review of the City Planning

         19  records and an on-line Yellow Pages Directory, we

         20  have determined that there are at least a half a

         21  million covered entities that would be required to

         22  post signs.

         23                 At a minimum, we would need at least

         24  1 million signs to fulfill the legislative mandate.

         25  We estimate that the initial cost of this measure
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          2  will be between $3 to $5 per sign for a total of 3

          3  to 5 million dollars, an amount that exceeds the

          4  Commission's entire tax levy budget, which is

          5  currently below $3 million.

          6                 Substantial changes in the law would

          7  require new translation, reproduction and a

          8  redistribution of the signs, again at a cost in the

          9  millions of dollars.

         10                 Furthermore, the Commission lacks the

         11  resources necessary to enforce Intro. No. 57, and

         12  has no mechanism to issue an adjudicate notice of a

         13  violation.

         14                 The proposal attempts to address this

         15  obvious problem by making the Department of Health

         16  and Mental Hygiene, and the Department of Sanitation

         17  responsible for issuing summonses and collecting

         18  fines.

         19                 However, these agencies could not

         20  adequately enforce this proposal. The Commission's

         21  Community Relations Bureau has been successful in

         22  delivering our message during my tenure as

         23  Commissioner.

         24                 In 2004, the Commission has assisted

         25  or educated in excess of 40,000 people.
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          2  Additionally, the Commission appeared in the media,

          3  print, radio and television in excess of 200 times

          4  last year.

          5                 We are currently finalizing plans to

          6  post agency information at 200 public telephone

          7  kiosks, and 60 bus shelters throughout the five

          8  boroughs.

          9                 Again, as indicated above, we support

         10  the bill in principle and spirit. However, it would

         11  be impossible for the Commission to comply given our

         12  current budget.

         13                 Thank you for your time and the

         14  opportunity to share our views.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you for

         16  your testimony, Commissioner.

         17                 Let me just say, I want to turn over

         18  the first opportunity to ask questions to Council

         19  Member Brewer in a moment.

         20                 Concerning your previous point,

         21  certainly with respect to budgetary concerns, I have

         22  to say, and we've had this conversation in this

         23  Committee now for years, I still think we have a

         24  long way to go in terms of reaching out to the

         25  public and making clear what people's rights are and
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          2  how to pursue action when their rights are violated.

          3                 So, I respect that you have tried

          4  various means to do that. I think, I know Council

          5  Member Gerson could not join us. He introduced this

          6  legislation I think for absolutely the right reason,

          7  which is we still have a long way to go in letting

          8  people know. And I appreciate that, and part of why

          9  I'm supporting the bill is that there's a

         10  universality to the approach to make it something

         11  that would be Citywide in the wide variety of

         12  locations.

         13                 And I would just caution, I respect

         14  that by your current budget, you couldn't pull a

         15  rabbit out of a hat, but our job is to determine

         16  what the needs of the City are on a policy level and

         17  to work through the budgetary ramifications after

         18  first deciding what the right policy should be.

         19                 So, I would say I respect that the

         20  budgetary piece has to be handled between the

         21  Council and the Mayor, but as to the question of

         22  need, I would contend that there is a distinct need

         23  for a more universal approach. I still think

         24  millions and millions of New Yorkers don't even know

         25  the existence of the Human Rights Commission.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: Council Member,

          3  while you're considering the needs of the City, I

          4  would also ask you to look in terms of the

          5  enforcement of such regulations. Because the

          6  Sanitation, Department of Sanitation is very limited

          7  in the areas, you know, like I said, we've

          8  identified over a half a million places that these

          9  signs would have to go, so that might require

         10  additional enforcement kinds of mechanisms.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I appreciate

         12  that concern, and I think it's a very real one. As

         13  we continue this dialogue and I'm sure it will be

         14  questions as we go along, and it will obviously be

         15  other distinct testimony from other people on this

         16  issue, I just would say I would urge us to begin at

         17  the beginning and say what kind of outreach do we

         18  need, and then figuring out how to make it work. And

         19  again, I think the instinct behind this bill was

         20  right, we need a more universal outreach to let

         21  people know how to access the work you do.

         22                 On Intro. 22-A, I just want to say, I

         23  want to thank Gale Brewer, before turning it over to

         24  her I want to thank her, because this is not the

         25  type of legislation that is easy to put together.
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          2  It's very complex, it's very detailed, but it gets

          3  at fundamental issues of whether we are doing all we

          4  can do to protect the rights of our citizenry. And I

          5  just want to add, I appreciate, again, some of the

          6  arguments you've made, Commissioner, about your

          7  concerns, and I think we have to take those

          8  seriously. I think this would be a very different

          9  discussion ten or 20 years ago, but in today's

         10  environment where certainly at the federal level,

         11  there are great reasons to be concerned about the

         12  protection of our rights and whether they are being

         13  protected vigorously.

         14                 I think the impetus behind this bill

         15  is particularly important, and, again, we have to

         16  look at the beginning of the beginning and

         17  appreciating the instinct for this bill came out of

         18  the times we are living in.

         19                 Let me turn it over to Council Member

         20  Brewer and welcome her to say some opening remarks

         21  on the legislation.

         22                 I'm sorry I didn't do that at the

         23  outset.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And then begin
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          2  with the questions.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you,

          4  Chairman. Thank you, Jackie Sherman, for all your

          5  work and Craig Gurian and the Commissioner. I know

          6  you've come several times, and I appreciate you're

          7  willingness to work with us on this bill, and also

          8  that you stayed last time and you're staying this

          9  time. It means a lot that you are so concerned.

         10                 And this is a bill that as the

         11  Chairman said is quite timely. I know that through

         12  the efforts of Craig Gurian his staff and now

         13  additionally Help USA, there is another center

         14  focusing in the latter case particularly on housing

         15  issues. And it is of tremendous concern as we are

         16  not only in a different time and age, information

         17  age, real estate concerns, and people living

         18  different kinds of lifestyles.

         19                 So, the fact of the matter is, this

         20  bill is trying to address different aspects of

         21  marital status, the issue of retaliation, something

         22  that the City Council is unfortunately dealing with,

         23  and goodness knows, it goes on in the workplace and

         24  in all of our lives.

         25                 Attorney fees, where there's a change
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          2  of policy, and trying to figure out how we in the

          3  City can, when we're not so sure about what the

          4  State and federal human rights laws are, in terms of

          5  enforcement or how they are used in our locality,

          6  how we can make sure that we have a minimum level

          7  and not a ceiling and I think these are all goals

          8  that you, too, support. So, the question is, how do

          9  we get there.

         10                 So, I was just wondering,

         11  particularly on sort of do you think this law should

         12  be liberally construed? That's a question that is

         13  sort of underlying of your testimony.

         14                 So, I just was wondering, I know that

         15  there's the word thorough, there are definitions

         16  that could be improved, and I think we could work

         17  together on that. But there's a general sort of

         18  undertone, I think, in terms of a different focus,

         19  and it is hard to define, because you are every

         20  single day trying to be sure that your decisions are

         21  upheld, trying to be sure that people get all due

         22  rights, that they are deserving of, but at the same

         23  time we're facing some very challenging situations

         24  on the federal and state level, and I think probably

         25  that will never change, because we have a very
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          2  different kind of constituency than perhaps other

          3  places in the United States, which you know, because

          4  you've addressed them.

          5                 So, I was just wondering if you could

          6  just talk a little bit broader about how, if you

          7  think the law should be liberally construed?

          8                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: Council member,

          9  I'm going to let my counsel answer that.

         10                 But, you know, we do construe it. I

         11  mean, just so you understand, here at the Commission

         12  we actually try to sort of push the wall. I mean, we

         13  believe in construing it liberally.

         14                 Our concern with this particular

         15  piece of legislation in that construction clause is

         16  that it doesn't really address specifically the

         17  issues, and it might be too vague if it gets taken

         18  to Supreme Court or if it goes to court, and you

         19  know, we would like to see specifics addressed in

         20  the areas that you're concerned with and the issues

         21  that you're concerned with.

         22                 But I mean, you know, there will be

         23  other commissioners after us. Of course, we will

         24  construe it liberally, but, you know, this is a law

         25  that's going to last forever, and, you know, you
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          2  don't want to have to sort of redraft it every

          3  single time an issue comes up, or, you know, it's

          4  not upheld or something and you want to try to be as

          5  specific as you can.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. And if

          7  you were to talk a little bit about, your last

          8  comment about the partnership status. Could you be

          9  more specific about what your concern is about that?

         10                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: We protect it.

         11  We don't have any concern with that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

         13                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: We protect

         14  partnership status.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. Because

         16  I know there has been some discussion that's exactly

         17  what that means back and forth. So, you feel

         18  comfortable?

         19                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: Absolutely.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Do you think

         21  that the judges will become, again, back to this

         22  liberally construed issue, uncontrollably liberal if

         23  these changes are instituted? That's sort of again

         24  back to the same issue.

         25                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: Well, I think
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          2  that we have to be clear in our law. Our law,

          3  certainly the City law is much broader and that's

          4  where we always encourage people to come to the City

          5  Commission, versus going other places. But I do

          6  think that we need to address specifically the

          7  issues that concern the Council, and concern the

          8  public with regard to how it's being construed. Just

          9  to say liberally that that's rather subjective.

         10                 So, I mean --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So, with

         12  clarification, you think it would be possible to

         13  work around that definition?

         14                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. And then

         16  do you -- because I know given your concerns about

         17  thorough and the other ones that I've mentioned, I

         18  mean are you saying that there will be harm done if,

         19  in fact, the tightness doesn't exist? Is that what

         20  your overall comment is?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: Council

         22  member, there's no definition of thorough. I mean,

         23  it's really a matter of opinion. We may, you and I

         24  may look at a particular case, and I may decide that

         25  one course of action has been thorough, and you may
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          2  decide that based on those same facts that maybe

          3  something else should have been done or maybe too

          4  much was done.

          5                 So, there's no legal standard as to

          6  what's thorough, and that's going to open every

          7  Commission decision up to litigation.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. Again,

          9  these are issues that can be discussed more when we

         10  go through each line with the attorneys.

         11                 But I appreciate the fact that you're

         12  willing to do this with us and we will work toward

         13  that end. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I will turn to

         15  Council Member Christine Quinn.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         17  Could you elaborate a little bit more about your

         18  concern about the posting issue?

         19                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: The posting

         20  issue is really a financial issue. I mean, you know,

         21  when we looked at it it was $3 to $5 a sign, we

         22  looked at a half a million locations and given the

         23  changes, we would have to, that are occurring or

         24  that may occur, it was just a matter of financial

         25  consideration, not in terms of -- we think it's a
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          2  great idea but it's a financial --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, you would

          4  propose a phasing in or something like that to deal

          5  with the financials perhaps?

          6                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: That might be a

          7  way, Council member.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: One of the

          9  things I want to say, about the posting, just to put

         10  it in a larger context, more and more I think

         11  there's a tremendous need to be more aggressive in

         12  our education about the existence and reach of the

         13  New York City Human Rights Law. So I think posting

         14  obviously can be very helpful in that regard.

         15                 I'm sure you're aware of this, but I

         16  think we also need to have a dialogue about City

         17  agencies and how much they're doing it. Because, and

         18  this is the part I'm sure you're aware of, last week

         19  for the third time in less than a year, the

         20  Department of Education came back to the City

         21  Council telling us that they followed the Human

         22  Rights Law, and then reading us their version of the

         23  Human Rights Law, and for the third time in a row

         24  they got it wrong. So, I am very concerned about the

         25  greater public's awareness of the Human Rights Law
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          2  when, in fact, our own City agencies are giving

          3  information to their employees, parents and students

          4  in this case, which in fact gives out

          5  misinformation.

          6                 So, I am very sympathetic, obviously,

          7  to the cost, but based on the hearing we had last

          8  week, I'm even more concerned about us getting the

          9  information out correctly, because apparently within

         10  the Administration there is just tremendous

         11  misunderstanding.

         12                 So, if I can also ask something with

         13  the Chair's deference beyond exactly the focus

         14  specifically of this hearing, if I could ask the

         15  Human Rights Commission to reach out to the

         16  Department of Investigation and review their

         17  materials and get back to the Council on what the

         18  status of their materials is as it reflects to

         19  correctly describing the Human Rights Law and help

         20  them, they can't get it right. And I told them I

         21  wasn't an A student, but usually when a teacher told

         22  me twice, I could at least bluff it on the third

         23  time, and they couldn't even, you know, bluff it.

         24  So, I would ask your help in making sure they are

         25  learning.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: It would be my

          3  pleasure.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Commissioner,

          5  let me ask you a few questions. I know Council

          6  Member Gerson also has some questions on his bill.

          7  He had to vote next door. He'll be right back, but

          8  let me ask you a few in the meantime.

          9                 Now I know, as any agency is looking

         10  at legislation, a lot of thinking goes into it, so I

         11  understand the people's position may evolve, but I

         12  am a little concerned or a little confused.

         13                 Last time we asked you in these

         14  chambers how you were feeling about this

         15  legislation, I thought you gave us a pretty positive

         16  answer. So, I'm trying to understand what is

         17  changed. Because the written testimony today sounds,

         18  I'm not going to say you're condemning it by any

         19  stretch of the imagination, I think you're working

         20  with it, but it sounds like you're more negative

         21  than you were a few weeks ago.

         22                 Can you speak to that?

         23                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: Well, I'm sorry

         24  I gave you a negative impression, because, no, I'm

         25  very positive. But you know, I'm from that, there's
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          2  an old civil rights saying that goes, if you

          3  encourage in spirit, you must deliver in fact. And

          4  since we have been in the process of evolving at the

          5  Human Rights Commission and trying to deliver in

          6  fact, then, you know, we've spent the last three

          7  years trying to really make things happen for people

          8  and really reach them. We are just concerned that

          9  our attentions would be diverted. I mean, in terms

         10  of the thorough, I'm very concerned that we would be

         11  involved in litigation, aside from the litigation

         12  that we're involved over our complainants.

         13                 You know, in terms of the

         14  construction clause, we're concerned that it's not

         15  specific enough. We would like for it to be more

         16  specific. So, no, I mean it's very positive in that

         17  I think this is certainly on the right track, and we

         18  could certainly work together, you know, to make it

         19  as tight as we think it should be, to really deliver

         20  in fact.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay, let me

         22  take you back on the question, sort of the

         23  environment we're in today, and I know when we're

         24  writing laws we have to think beyond the current

         25  moment. But on the other hand, you know, most laws
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          2  are written trying to deal with the reality as it

          3  is, sometimes for fear it may stay that way.

          4                 So, I think this question of how we

          5  look at our relationship to state and federal law is

          6  crucial to all of us. So, let me begin at the

          7  beginning.

          8                 Right now we do not say that your

          9  work and the City's Human Rights Law is limited by

         10  state and federal law regarding similar areas of

         11  rights; is that a true statement?

         12                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: We're not

         13  limited by State and Federal Law, absolutely not.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: That's what I'm

         15  asking.

         16                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: Absolutely not,

         17  no.

         18                 I mean, I kind of, I understand where

         19  you're coming from. I realize the case that this has

         20  sort of evolved from, involving the individual going

         21  to the federal courts. We would have done it

         22  differently.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I guess what

         24  I'm trying to -- we're not asking you to negotiate

         25  it word for word. I think we're asking you to, we're
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          2  giving you an opportunity to further clarify your

          3  position. If you don't think we should be limited

          4  and that we have our own reality here in the City,

          5  and we're trying through this legislation to better

          6  define how we view rights and how we want to protect

          7  rights, including going beyond some of what the

          8  federal and state law does, and including getting

          9  ahead of some possibly negative trends, can you

         10  better define what would make the legislation work

         11  better for you? If you share that philosophy, what

         12  type of wording, what type of approach would make

         13  you feel more comfortable.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: I think

         15  that the legislation is trying to correct some of

         16  the limitations that have already been imposed in

         17  the State and Federal Court, and then it was done

         18  specifically through specific wording in particular

         19  sections that you wish to address. And that's

         20  probably the best way to do it. I understand that

         21  maybe it means more work, or that sometimes if a

         22  court does something that you disagree with, you

         23  have to, not amend the legislation, but really

         24  that's how it works, to just try and anticipate

         25  something that may or may not happen and use this
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          2  broad language doesn't really tell anybody what it

          3  is they're supposed to do or not supposed to do, and

          4  it's important, I think, that the Human Rights law

          5  explicitly tells people how they're supposed to act.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So, again, I'm

          7  not a lawyer so let me do my best, as hopefully a

          8  common sensical layman here, to figure this out.

          9                 You would say then, if you determine

         10  that a specific right is undercovered or

         11  underprotected by State or federal law, that you

         12  would urge then specific legislation, or specific

         13  wording to address that case-by-case; is that what

         14  you're saying?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Obviously,

         17  there have been a number of examples in recent

         18  history in the City, and I think we've constantly

         19  walked up the ladder in terms of protecting more and

         20  more rights in recent years.

         21                 But for example, are there any rights

         22  at this moment the Commission is worried that

         23  federal and state law do not treat well enough, and

         24  that we might want to think about taking specific

         25  legislative action on?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: I don't

          3  have a specific example at the moment. When we look

          4  at the human rights law, we look at it with common

          5  sense and knowing the intent that it was meant for,

          6  and we do look at it liberally, and we do everything

          7  we can to stretch it as far as we can stretch it.

          8                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: You know, a

          9  good example, and we didn't come with that testimony

         10  in mind, and we can certainly go back and think

         11  about it and come back to you with, you know, even

         12  suggestions if you would like, but I mean, when you

         13  define gender, when you define gender in our law,

         14  you know, that we thought -- it's a very strong

         15  statement and it really improved our law and took it

         16  years, light years ahead of what's going on in the

         17  State and federal government. And, you know, that's

         18  sort of an example of the kind of thing, and we

         19  would have to look, you know, at the law again and

         20  sort of break it down with that in mind. But it's

         21  just that when we looked at the two clauses, we

         22  thought, oh my, this is so vague, that how are we

         23  even going to tell people in our little signs in

         24  half a million places if that happens, you know,

         25  what they should and shouldn't be doing.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay, I

          3  understand --

          4                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: So that would

          5  require more thinking on our part. We don't want to

          6  miss -- but we could definitely come back to you and

          7  work on some things.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay.

          9                 I mean, look, I think you've seen

         10  enough of how we're approaching this work over the

         11  years, all of us here on this Committee, that we're

         12  not trying to play gotcha here, and we're not trying

         13  to, you know, create conflict.

         14                 I think what we're trying to do is

         15  challenge each other to calibrate our human rights

         16  law, to both the reality of the City and, again,

         17  some of the unfortunate reality around us in the

         18  rest of the nation, and I think there is a certain

         19  logic to the idea to try and establish a broad

         20  standard because there is exactly that lag time.

         21                 Look at the issue of transgender

         22  rights you just raised. I mean, I think it took

         23  years for it to get sufficiently acted on and

         24  recognized in New York City, and it will be many

         25  years, unfortunately, and tragically before it is
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          2  elsewhere. And so I think there is a natural impulse

          3  to do something broad.

          4                 Let me now turn it around the other

          5  way. We would absolutely welcome you bringing

          6  forward any ideas of where legislative action is

          7  necessary, because you're on the front line.

          8                 So, that would be a very natural and

          9  positive development in the relationship between the

         10  Commission and this City to say, hey, you know, we

         11  actually think this is an area that does need

         12  further strengthening.

         13                 But if I hear your critique, if we

         14  came back over the next five years and we had 20

         15  different -- I'm being a little severe on purpose,

         16  but I want to test it this way. If we had 20 pieces

         17  of legislation, each to treat a different specific

         18  area that was not clear enough in current law, that

         19  would be structurally preferable to you, according

         20  to what you said, versus approaching it broadly as

         21  is in this current draft. Is that a true statement?

         22                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: I don't think

         23  there would be 20, you know, even in the real world.

         24  What we're saying is that, you know, we looked at --

         25  let me start from the beginning.
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          2                 When we initially came to the

          3  Commission, we looked at the law, and we knew that

          4  there were some issues that we had in terms of how

          5  it was drafted, there is some wording, it wasn't

          6  clear. I mean, I just think that if we're going to

          7  do this, in fact, if that's something that you, the

          8  Council wants to do it, then we can go word-by-word,

          9  and we really need to look at the entire body of the

         10  law, and then maybe there needs to be some

         11  legislative changes and more legislative history so

         12  that we will be able to really make some

         13  determinations and we're just not going on what we

         14  think is right, but what you have decided that you

         15  want to happen.

         16                 Because I can tell you that in trying

         17  to even work with the gender identity, I mean, for

         18  instance, we were arguing the other day about their

         19  -- there are certain parts in that part of the law

         20  that don't exist in others. I can't remember what it

         21  was, but we were saying that we've been here, and

         22  had we testified, we would have tried to have made

         23  it consistent throughout.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Right.

         25                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: And I would
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          2  like to see an approach where we looked at the law

          3  and the Council members and we worked and we decided

          4  as a group what the people really want, what you

          5  want to say and then there's a history so that we

          6  can be guided by a great extent. I mean, we know

          7  what your intent is, at least we feel it, to sort of

          8  push the envelope and to liberally construe, but

          9  that may not happen five years from now, six years

         10  from now, with people that will succeed us.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I don't think

         12  there is a dichotomy between us pursuing this law

         13  and obviously continuing dialogue with you and with

         14  the Administration on this law. And I'm not saying

         15  you thought there was, I'm saying, I'm just stating

         16  for the record, with you coming forward to us and we

         17  sitting together to look at areas that you think

         18  need further specific treatment, and I think those

         19  are both good, positive tracks that we should be

         20  working on and they compliment each other.

         21                 So, I think, you know, that's

         22  something we very much want to take you up on.

         23                 Let me take you back on the question

         24  of retaliation. The wording in 22-A that revises a

         25  standard for determining what constitutes
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          2  retaliation. Are you a supporter of that particular

          3  wording?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: Yes, we

          5  are. And we have, that's the way we approach those

          6  type of issues anyway.

          7                 We didn't need for you to clarify it

          8  in order for us to do it. But it's good that it's

          9  clear.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Codifying has

         11  great advantages, because there will be people after

         12  you some day, and it's good that there's one

         13  standard that one has to live by.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: That's

         15  what we do anyway.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: All right. And

         17  also on the question of enabling attorneys to

         18  collect fees and catalyst cases, do you support that

         19  wording in 22-A?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: Yes, we

         21  do.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Could you be

         23  more wordy, Cliff?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: The

         25  problem we had in the past was with attorneys
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          2  collecting attorneys' fees basically for the work

          3  that we do at the Commission. But it's legitimate

          4  that someone that causes a policy change is a victor

          5  in a particular case, and would be and should be

          6  entitled to the fees that someone that received the

          7  monetary damage would be entitled to.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Very good.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: There

         10  are issues of whether or not that would prevent

         11  people from voluntarily changing policies, but I

         12  guess that's not really that important.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Let me turn to

         14  Council Member Brewer again, and then we'll go to

         15  Council Member Gerson.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Very quickly.

         17  I was thinking about this legislation yesterday when

         18  I read in the times about the hospitals and that New

         19  York City has so many more stays that are lengthier,

         20  and then I thought to myself, well, I've been

         21  dealing with four cases just like that where there

         22  are individuals in our hospitals who have been

         23  evicted. They were sick. At the same time they were

         24  evicted they went to the hospital, and to the credit

         25  of the hospital in our City, they don't release
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          2  people until they have a place to live.

          3                 So, we're different. As you know,

          4  we're such a different place that it isn't -- it

          5  does need some recognition. I think you know that,

          6  but the question is, how do we figure out a way of

          7  making it even clearer.

          8                 So, my question is, if there was both

          9  a combination of your suggestions and some direction

         10  in the surrounding memorandum that accompanies a

         11  bill like this, would that be something that would

         12  help clarify the situation?

         13                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: Yes, it would.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I think that

         17  helps a little bit.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         19  Council member.

         20                 Council Member Gerson.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Good

         22  afternoon. Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

         23                 Thank you for allowing me to

         24  participate. I am here as a guest of the Committee,

         25  since I do not sit on this Committee, so I
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          2  appreciate that opportunity. And Mr. Chair, I thank

          3  you for your stellar leadership.

          4                 Let's see if we can make a little bit

          5  of progress on the posting bill. As we did on the

          6  bill on which you just testified, Intro. 57, you

          7  know there is a saying with which I think we've all

          8  grown up, "ignorance of the law is no excuse."

          9                 I would add to that, a statement to

         10  the effect that perpetuating ignorance of the law is

         11  even less excusable.

         12                 But that truly is what we do when we

         13  pass law without putting in place sufficient

         14  mechanism, mechanisms to promulgate the law, and

         15  that is especially wrong when it comes to law as

         16  fundamental as human rights law.

         17                 In the lineage behind this proposal,

         18  which as I'm sure you know goes back quite a bit,

         19  I'm kind of carrying the ball on this, it was

         20  initially launched before I assume the current

         21  office, but I'd like to see this proposal brought to

         22  fruition well before I complete my term in office.

         23  And by the way, let me digress to acknowledge credit

         24  to one of the bill's founders and most avid

         25  promulgators in the audience, a great community
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          2  activist and human rights activist, Mr. Tom Smith,

          3  and thank you for all your great work.

          4                 But this posting bill is critical for

          5  an immediate practical reason and a broader

          6  significant but also practical reason the immediate

          7  is, just so people know what the law is, just so

          8  people know what the rights are, both those who are

          9  charged with applying the law and those who might be

         10  victims, so people can comply with the law, and

         11  people can know when their rights are violated, and

         12  stand up for their own rights. That's why you are in

         13  the business you are in, and that's hopefully why we

         14  are here.

         15                 On a more broader cultural basis, if

         16  you will, our success in human rights throughout our

         17  City and society will ultimately be determined by

         18  the evolution of the culture so we have a culture of

         19  human rights, wherein all of its categories and all

         20  of its implications people understand and hopefully

         21  eventually come to the point where we -- it's part

         22  and parcel of our dynamics of both economic and

         23  non-economic activity that human rights for all

         24  people in all the categories cover the law is known

         25  and is applied and is part of our culture.
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          2                 But one way to evolve the culture is

          3  by widely disseminating information. That is truly

          4  one of the successes for earlier human rights law.

          5  When you go, and I'm going to ask you about this a

          6  little bit in a moment, but when you go into places

          7  of employment, when you see where we do have posting

          8  requirements to which we are adhered, and we've seen

          9  it repetitively and you've seen it growing up as a

         10  kid, it becomes part of the culture, and it abets

         11  the cause of human rights for all, and similarly if

         12  we mean what we say in this human rights law, we

         13  need to promulgate it, and go to the immediate

         14  practical way and in a broader cultural way so it

         15  becomes part, so we develop a full culture of human

         16  rights.

         17                 And, so, I state these remarks to

         18  kind of really put the context as to why we feel

         19  this is so important.

         20                 You testified you agree with the

         21  spirit of this and I appreciate that, so I hope we

         22  can shift the discussion as to practical ways not

         23  that we simply cannot do it because it's too

         24  expensive, but let's figure out ways of overcoming

         25  the burden, whether it's phasing in, as Council
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          2  Member Quinn said, or whether it's using available

          3  technology, you know, with Internet and e-mails,

          4  maybe you know, there's a way of promulgating these

          5  notices and all of its translations in a high-tech

          6  type of a way to those businesses which have access,

          7  which are more and more and requiring them just to

          8  print it off, whether it's sharing the burden.

          9                 I'd like to ask you if we can,

         10  between this hearing and the next hearing on this

         11  bill, and before we move to a vote, because I'd like

         12  to do this cooperatively with the Commission and

         13  with the Administration, we should not be

         14  adversaries in this, can we have a sit-down

         15  practical discussion on how to deal with the

         16  expense, and maybe how to make it less expensive or

         17  phase it in, or rather than just say we cannot do

         18  it, try and figure out a way in which we can do it.

         19                 Could we have that kind of

         20  conversation? That's my question.

         21                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: We can always

         22  have a conversation, Council member, and we're

         23  certainly not opposed to it.

         24                 The only thing that I think concerns

         25  us with the posting also is that, you know, this is
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          2  not a real simply kind of law. It's not like a

          3  criminal code where you can say, you know, don't do

          4  X, don't do Y or this is going to happen.

          5                 Our law requires talking to people

          6  and educating them about how to use it.

          7                 You know, it's one thing to say that

          8  you're -- because it's a very specific law, it's one

          9  thing to say, you know, employers can't discriminate

         10  and someone says, well, I feel I've been

         11  discriminated against, they come and tell us in

         12  fact, that may not in fact fit our law. So, our law

         13  requires an education, and then we have to also --

         14  and I mean, this is not to say that it's not doable.

         15  You know, in spirit we're with you, Council member,

         16  you know, we just wanted to be effective.

         17                 And, you know, that's why we spend a

         18  lot of time in schools with children on different

         19  issues, in different parts of the world, because,

         20  see, that's the other thing, you know, you talk

         21  about posting, and we can say there's a City human

         22  rights law that bans, you know, discrimination, it's

         23  a very specific law.

         24                 So, that would be my only concern.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Well, I think
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          2  that's a fair point in reminding us that this cannot

          3  be the end game. But I think we intend this as a

          4  very important starting game, if you will, and

          5  especially the need in a multilingual city to have

          6  the languages, which you know, you go on the subway

          7  and important information about a child's

          8  educational process, which I'm sure is also

          9  complicated. We see important information about how

         10  to help women who are battered, which as horrible as

         11  it is, is also in certain cases legally complicated.

         12  But, yet, recognizing the importance of awareness

         13  that you at least might have a remedy, and there is

         14  such a thing as a human rights law that covers all

         15  the different categories that we have alerts people

         16  in who, especially if they're linguistically

         17  challenged, if you will, in terms of not reading

         18  English, doing it in their languages, both in the

         19  practical way and the cultural way, couldn't it make

         20  a difference don't you think?

         21                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: Well, I think

         22  when the public is aware, that's always a good

         23  thing. Again, you know, we're not just agreeing

         24  here, it's just a matter of how to do this

         25  effectively.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Well, some

          3  levels of government currently do have posting

          4  requirements for the Equal Employment Rights Law,

          5  for example. How does that work?

          6                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: Well, you know,

          7  agencies, and we're required to past not only the

          8  law but, you know, letters of support for the EEOC

          9  and, you know, and you direct them to different

         10  individuals, but it's not as broad as ours and it

         11  doesn't cover as many areas as we do, and it's

         12  directed towards employment, but as you know, we

         13  deal with public accommodations.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Right.

         15                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: Employment,

         16  housing.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Let's just

         18  take employment. Who pays for those notices that are

         19  posted in places of employment, do you know?

         20                 I don't know either offhand.

         21                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: No, I don't

         22  know, Council member.

         23                 I know we post our letters, and when

         24  we're in the District Attorney's Office, we posted

         25  them, the DA posted them, you know, we posted them,
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          2  the agency posted them. But I don't know if it's

          3  done any other way because we've posted them at the

          4  Commission also.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I mean, when

          6  we adopted the employment rights laws and with a

          7  posting requirement, it must also, I mean there are

          8  plenty, there are a lot of places of employment in

          9  the City of New York that we got the job done, and

         10  I'm wondering if we could take that as an example.

         11  And I know the universe is a bit expanded, but that

         12  would be a significant part of the universe.

         13                 If we could do it with respect to

         14  that law, it seems to me we could figure out a way,

         15  especially with the advent of new technologies, to

         16  do it, you know, for the Human Rights Law in all of

         17  its applications.

         18                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: We don't

         19  disagree, Council member. It's just a matter of

         20  looking at it and doing it effectively and the least

         21  expensive way that we could do it. But right now, as

         22  we understand it and the way it's written, you know,

         23  we would be faced with three to five million dollar

         24  expense.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Is that three
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          2  to five million as a recurring expense to you, or is

          3  it a one-shot expense?

          4                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: I don't know.

          5  Maybe it would be a recurring expense if we changed

          6  the law. It might be an additional -- we don't know

          7  because I have to --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: This is your

          9  estimate, so I'm curious, in your estimate do you

         10  mean it as an annual budgetary item or is it --

         11                 COMMISSIONER GATLING: No. We looked

         12  at it as basically a one-time posting, but I mean

         13  when we thought about it and we looked at it and we

         14  realized the changes that have occurred with this

         15  law in the way it's constantly developing, and the

         16  languages, you know, it's easy to put English and

         17  Spanish on one poster, but I mean, in one Brooklyn

         18  Neighborhood I had seven different kinds of

         19  languages that I have to post, and how many

         20  languages are in New York city? Almost 100.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: You know there

         22  could be, and it would be an interesting exercise,

         23  and economic calculation as to the lost economic

         24  opportunities to people whose rights are not lived

         25  up to because of they do not know about their
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          2  remedies. And I'm sure there's a way we could figure

          3  out to do, a way which we could figure out to do it

          4  less expensively, but I bet three to five million is

          5  a one-shot, not necessarily an annual expense, it

          6  might be more than compensated in terms of the

          7  economic benefit so people having their rights

          8  adhered to and avoiding, if you will, litigation of

          9  both people responsible for applying the rights are

         10  given notice in advance, as well as again the

         11  potential victim.

         12                 So, keep in mind if we're talking

         13  strictly along economics, the human rights as you

         14  know must transcend always economics, but there is

         15  an economic value to having one's rights enforced

         16  and implied.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Council member,

         18  I'm sorry to interrupt. We unfortunately are --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: No, that was

         20  my last point in any event. But I just think we

         21  heard a commitment to continue the conversation and

         22  at the practical level and figure out a way, you

         23  know, to get this practically done, so with your

         24  participation and leadership I'll look forward to

         25  doing that.
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          2                 Thank you very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

          4                 Thank you, Commissioner.

          5                 I would like to add further that I

          6  assure you in Brooklyn we can find you a printer who

          7  can do it a lot cheaper than three- to five-million

          8  dollars.

          9                 I fundamentally believe there is a

         10  way to do -- we'll compete for that, but I

         11  fundamentally believe there is a way to do this in a

         12  cost-effective manner, and I will leave you with a

         13  thought, that anything that gets the word out

         14  universally is ultimately going to benefit us. That

         15  is worth spending something on. I'm sure we can find

         16  a way to make it cost efficient and reasonable.

         17                 Thank you very much for your

         18  testimony. We look forward to working together and

         19  we will take you up on giving us legislative ideas

         20  on how to improve the current law.

         21                 Thank you very much.

         22                 Our next panelists played a very

         23  major role in the creation of Intro. 22-A. Craig

         24  Gurian of the Anti-Discrimination Center. And we

         25  welcome your testimony.
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          2                 MR. GURIAN: But, Craig, I also want

          3  to caution, you know how I feel about written

          4  testimony. This will all go into the record,

          5  obviously. Could you highlight the key portions?

          6                 MR. GURIAN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          7                 I just want to take a moment to say,

          8  first of all, a hello to Council Member Arroyo, who

          9  I haven't had the pleasure of appearing before

         10  today. And it's good to see you here. Just a couple

         11  of pieces of housekeeping I wanted to point out that

         12  the bill has printed omits two long-time sponsors,

         13  Council Members Foster and Recchia, and also the

         14  latest and 37th member on the bill, Tony Avella.

         15  Jean Ryan from disabled in action was going to

         16  testify today, but was obliged to go to a doctor's

         17  appointment. She asked me to submit her written

         18  testimony and she conveyed to the Committee DIA's

         19  continuing support for the bill. Two other

         20  colleagues have actually heeded the prehearing

         21  warnings about not submitting duplicative testimony.

         22  Both Iram Taki from the New York Civil Liberties

         23  Union and Carrie Lopez from the Women's Brice

         24  Project are here today, and they asked me to convey

         25  the strong support of both those organizations.
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          2                 I have a list of the now 30 civil

          3  rights and allied organizations that are asking the

          4  Committee to pass Intro. 22, and I'd like to submit

          5  that list for the record.

          6                 I have submitted written testimony. I

          7  won't take the Committee's time to read it. I did

          8  want to speak for a moment about Medgar Evers.

          9                 Medgar was a true hero of the civil

         10  rights movement. The day after he was assassinated,

         11  now more than 40 years ago, there were a number of

         12  songs written memorializing him, most famously the

         13  Bob Dilan song, my own attention was captured when I

         14  listened again the other night to another such song,

         15  the Death of Medgar, was written by Donald Peese.

         16  The song talks about the constant threats,

         17  harassment, even a fire-bombing that Medgar and his

         18  family had to endure, and honors Medgar's resolve in

         19  the phase of the risk. He never quit fighting. He

         20  never quit trying. He never lost courage and he

         21  never laid down.

         22                 He never lost hope and he never

         23  feared dying. And the song, after describing the

         24  horror of the assassination itself, of his children

         25  having their dad die in front of their eyes, the

                                                            55

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  song concludes with its call to arms. Then "sleep

          3  Medgar Evers, your struggle is over. They thought

          4  they could kill you, but we know they were wrong.

          5  They might lay you down in the quiet of Arlington,

          6  but while we are living the fight will go on."

          7                 We are lucky to be living in times

          8  where generally speaking, we needn't summon up the

          9  awesome courage required to confront the threat of

         10  catastrophic violence. But there is still a

         11  tremendous amount of work to do.

         12                 The New York City metropolitan area

         13  remains the most segregated Metropolitan area in the

         14  entire United States for Latinos. One measure of

         15  segregation is the isolation index, in terms of that

         16  index, the New York City Metropolitan area is the

         17  most segregated major metropolitan area in the

         18  United States for African-Americans.

         19                 Depending on the measurement, New

         20  York City proper is regularly in the top five or top

         21  ten of the most segregated cities in the country.

         22  Conservative court decisions, and you don't have to

         23  be reading the New York Law Journal to see this,

         24  conservative court decisions keep on cutting back on

         25  civil rights protections. And in a nationwide survey
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          2  done in 2002 by the Urban Institute for HUD, an

          3  astonishing 83 percent of people who believe they

          4  have been discriminated against in housing didn't do

          5  anything about it.

          6                 Part of that inaction is a lack of

          7  knowledge of available remedies, which goes to the

          8  need, I think for the notice requirements of Intro.

          9  57, and just a footnote and quick solve on this, the

         10  law or regulations can simply identify the form that

         11  has to be set out by various categories of New York

         12  City businesses and landlords and then like with

         13  every other posting provision, the person or entity

         14  with the obligation to do it goes out and either

         15  buys his or her own sign or downloads it from the

         16  Internet.

         17                 So, I don't know about the way the

         18  text of the bill is written, but in terms of a

         19  practical solve, it's essentially a zero cost

         20  solution for the City.

         21                 Another part of people not coming

         22  forward is feeling like doing so wouldn't do any

         23  good, wouldn't be effective that the deck is stacked

         24  against them, and increasingly it is.

         25                 The City Human Rights Law in its text
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          2  now explicitly provides that judges are supposed to

          3  liberally construe provisions of the law to

          4  accomplish the purposes of the law.

          5                 Nobody said for the decades that

          6  that's been in the law, that that's too vague or

          7  anything like that. It's supposed to give guidance,

          8  give guidance to err on the side of coverage to make

          9  sure that the provisions of the law aren't evaded.

         10                 Unfortunately, there is a pattern of

         11  judges not doing so, and Intro. 22, like any kind of

         12  remedial legislation, is designed very specifically

         13  to attack the mechanism by which judges have

         14  routinely evaded their existing responsibility to

         15  liberally construe.

         16                 Despite fear mongering about the

         17  bill, all we're trying to do is to return to an

         18  honor tradition of seeking to have the Human Rights

         19  Law interpret it robustly.

         20                 Back in 1973, 32 years ago, the bill,

         21  the law was amended to prohibit discrimination on

         22  the basis of marital status. In 1977, just four

         23  years later, the Commission on Human Rights

         24  considered the argument of a landlord who believed

         25  that unmarried persons planning to live together
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          2  would be more likely to have financial difficulties

          3  culminating in the breaking of their lease than with

          4  married persons living together, and the Commission

          5  in 1977 rejected that argument saying it was

          6  subjective decisions of this very type, so clearly

          7  mired on preconceived stereotypical attitudes which

          8  serve to make finding housing so great a problem for

          9  unmarried people, and which was in large part

         10  responsible for the legislative enactment under

         11  which this Commission's jurisdiction has been

         12  involved in this case.

         13                 Twenty-eight years later we're

         14  dealing with the aftermath of conservative court

         15  decisions that say intentional discrimination

         16  against unmarried couples isn't really

         17  discrimination after all, and if there isn't going

         18  to be specific language rectifying that, there

         19  certainly should be what there was agreed to be

         20  language accompanying the bill saying that the

         21  marital status decision from the Court of Appeals is

         22  an exact example of not construing the bill

         23  liberally and has to be reexamined.

         24                 Back in 1991, Mayor Dinkins

         25  summarized clearly the intention of that year's
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          2  comprehensive revision. It is the intention of the

          3  Council that judges interpreting the City's Human

          4  Rights Law are not to be bound by restrictive state

          5  and federal rulings and are to take seriously the

          6  requirement that this law be liberally and

          7  independently construed.

          8                 Our mistake for which I certainly

          9  bear some of the responsibility is that we didn't

         10  tie those sentiments expressed by Mayor Dinkins into

         11  specific changes in the language of the construction

         12  provision of the law.

         13                 So, here we are 14 years later, and

         14  we find opposition to protecting the law in this

         15  way. Make no mistake, though. The idea that our

         16  local law should be liberally and independently

         17  construed is a Bedrock principal of civil rights

         18  law, it deserves to be defended and I'd be happy to

         19  try to answer any questions that members of the

         20  Committee may have.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay, first of

         22  all, thank you again for the work you've done on

         23  this issue. We're going back a long time. I

         24  appreciate the work you did in the creation of this

         25  legislation.
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          2                 I also appreciate the way you've

          3  handled the testimony today, and the respect you've

          4  shown for our time, and I deeply appreciate that on

          5  a professional level.

          6                 Let me turn first to the bill's prime

          7  sponsor, Gale Brewer.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you,

          9  Craig Gurian, for all of your work on this issue.

         10                 I notice, just to be specific, having

         11  just quickly read Disabled In Action's testimony,

         12  and Jean Ryan, and certainly she and many members

         13  whom I know, face discrimination in many different

         14  ways. One of the ones that she talked about is the

         15  fact that if you are a person with a disability, you

         16  are likely sometimes to have the rent security or

         17  the co-signing of a lease done by a family member or

         18  a friend. And she points out that in the State of

         19  California, you are less likely to be thrown out of

         20  your apartment or not given the lease then in the

         21  State of New York.

         22                 So here would be an example, I think,

         23  where she points out that in California, despite

         24  what goes on on the federal level, the courts and

         25  the localities are able to go further and it's done
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          2  as a right. And it is in the challenge or something

          3  that's construed or thought about more than once.

          4  So, is that a situation in California that the

          5  locality has certain legislative guidelines that we

          6  would like to have here in New York.

          7                 MR. GURIAN: That's actually a very

          8  interesting and very important circumstance, because

          9  it's quite real for people. If you are not able to

         10  be employed, because you are disabled, you still

         11  need a place to live.

         12                 Some people are lucky enough, either

         13  through some combination of scraping to get their

         14  disability benefits, disability pension or some

         15  other means to be able to afford what the landlord

         16  is asking, but run into a rule. And the whole point

         17  of disability law is to allow reasonable

         18  accommodations. What's the reasonable accommodation

         19  here? Let there be a co-sponsor. Let somebody cover

         20  the rent. And this particular one really illustrates

         21  the fallacy of saying there is federal law. Because

         22  it turns out that in California, they're both

         23  federal court decisions, in California, in that

         24  circuit the court understands that this type of

         25  accommodation needs to be evaluated just like any
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          2  other. Does it cause an undue hardship on the

          3  landlord, and if it did cause an undue hardship, the

          4  landlord wouldn't have to do it.

          5                 In the federal courts in New York,

          6  2nd Circuit dismisses that as economic

          7  accommodation.

          8                 What we need to have judges who have

          9  the City Human Rights Law doing, and they're looking

         10  at it, is to say our task is to liberally construe

         11  our law. Not interpretation, best accords with the

         12  idea that we want to maximize people's ability to be

         13  able to get into apartments notwithstanding the fact

         14  that the person may have a disability. And the

         15  reason that they aren't doing that kind of thing,

         16  and they're supposed to have been doing it, is there

         17  is a particular mechanism, instead of reading,

         18  thinking, pondering the question, they treat the

         19  local law as a carbon copy of some other federal or

         20  state decision, without analyzing what

         21  interpretation is best.

         22                 So, unless people are prepared to get

         23  rid of liberal construction, and I could understand

         24  why some people would be opposed to liberal

         25  construction of the law, but that's there now,
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          2  unless you want to get rid of that, you have to get

          3  rid of the impediments to liberal construction

          4  getting done, and Intro. 22 removes the mechanism

          5  and returns the system to what it was supposed to be

          6  in the first place, analyzing what interpretation

          7  most robustly fulfills the purposes of the law.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you. I

          9  felt that was a good illustration from Disabled In

         10  Action.

         11                 The Commissioner complained about the

         12  word "thorough." How would you answer that

         13  complaint?

         14                 MR. GURIAN: It is true that agencies

         15  are given pretty broad discretion in how they handle

         16  complaints, and under this bill the agency will

         17  still have the broad discretion in terms of how it's

         18  going to handle a complaint.

         19                 However, investigation has to be

         20  investigation. It doesn't mean that the Commission

         21  has to take the same steps in response to each

         22  complaint.

         23                 What it does mean, though, is that in

         24  very case the Commission needs to be probing of the

         25  reasons for action or inaction that the respondents
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          2  have put forward. It means that the Commission's Law

          3  Enforcement Bureau has to have an understanding that

          4  at the investigative stage it has an active role in

          5  ferreting out facts, not just playing a passive

          6  judge, and finally that the agency treat an

          7  investigation as something that requires facts to be

          8  gathered from fact witnesses, not position

          9  statements to be gathered from lawyers. And one

         10  would also expect finally that steps that have been

         11  taken would be well documented as required, for

         12  example, for investigations conducted under the Fair

         13  Housing Act.

         14                 So, does it give people the

         15  opportunity to say as a litigant did successfully

         16  last year, no investigation was done? Yes. Is it

         17  likely that courts are going to be interested in

         18  saying, well, you should have interviewed one more

         19  witness here. Absolutely not.

         20                 What this is going to try to deal

         21  with is situations at the extreme where it's

         22  apparent in the record that basic aspects of

         23  investigation haven't been done, and I don't think

         24  it's so bad for our Human Rights Law to have that

         25  kind of requirement.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.

          3  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

          5  Council member. And thank you, again, for having

          6  been the leading force in this legislation.

          7                 Craig, let me ask you, you heard the

          8  dialogue over the question of whether -- the

          9  dialogue of Commissioner Gatling, over the question

         10  of whether it is better to approach the problem of

         11  the gap between the right to protect and the right

         12  to protect the state and federal level through what

         13  I will just use a layman's term a broad approach,

         14  such as in this legislation, or through very

         15  specific amendments or specific new pieces of

         16  legislation over time. What is your response to the

         17  Commissioner's view on that matter?

         18                 MR. GURIAN: There is certainly

         19  nothing wrong with making specific restorations. I

         20  think the bill does some of them. You did give me a

         21  little bit of a heart attack when you gave me that

         22  five-year time line. This is already the third

         23  hearing on the bill, so I don't want the 20 changes

         24  to be going on over that time line, but the problem

         25  is --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I thought you

          3  would be happy that I put up 20 changes.

          4                 MR. GURIAN: But when, Mr. Chairman?

          5                 Specific restorations are helpful but

          6  they're not enough, and we know that from

          7  experience.

          8                 We know that from the very fact that

          9  the requirement of liberal construction is in the

         10  law. You give broad general guidance, and the

         11  Committee report that accompanies this bill begins

         12  to put in some additional guidance to fill that in.

         13  But even where specific language of our local

         14  statute, sort of specific provisions, and you look

         15  at the specific provisions, and the language is

         16  different from what it says under State or federal

         17  law, we have had circumstances where courts have

         18  failed to heed the language, because they

         19  completely, and there are other people here who can

         20  talk to that, it is a kneejerk response, they drop

         21  the footnote. City and State are just like federal

         22  and move on.

         23                 We tried a previous fix on

         24  retaliation, concerned about the same problem of

         25  saying people weren't retaliated against enough, and
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          2  added in the words in 1991 that retaliation couldn't

          3  be done in any manner. And we thought, all right,

          4  that means in any manner.

          5                 Courts have continued to say, well,

          6  it's similar language. They haven't given a

          7  different interpretation.

          8                 A court has recently ignored the

          9  Council's language in making individual employees

         10  liable for their own discriminatory conduct. The

         11  language in the statute couldn't be more clear. But

         12  this particular court, the Appellate -- a panel of

         13  the Appellate Division, First Department, simply

         14  couldn't believe that the City was doing something

         15  different, and they just made up legislative history

         16  to get past it.

         17                 And then this fall, the State Court

         18  of Appeals said that, that an employer is not liable

         19  for a supervisory employee's racial slurs and

         20  harassment if the employer hasn't ratified or

         21  condoned that behavior.

         22                 That's a true statement. It's a sad

         23  statement, but a true statement of state law. And he

         24  also said that the employer has an affirmative

         25  defense to liability for supervisory harassment.
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          2                 That's a true statement of federal

          3  law. What the courts seemed to forget was in our

          4  law, Section 8-10713, that section specifically

          5  contemplates that employers are strictly liable for

          6  acts of employees, who exercise supervisory or

          7  managerial employees.

          8                 So, it's just not going to work with

          9  the individual fixes, the broad fix is necessary,

         10  and, really, it only brings us back to where we were

         11  supposed to be in the first place, having the law

         12  liberally construed.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         14                 And thank you for your testimony.

         15  It's been very helpful. We appreciate it. And thank

         16  you to your colleagues who deferred to and submitted

         17  written testimony as well, and all the written

         18  testimony will be put into the official record.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 I would like to call up one more

         21  panel on Intro. 22-A and then we will also have a

         22  panel on Intro. 57.

         23                 We have four people on the next

         24  panel, Joanne Simon, Kevin Sullivan, Sarah Alvarez

         25  and Herbert Eisenberg. We welcome you all. And out
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          2  of a sense of Brooklyn privilege, we're going to let

          3  Joanne Simon go first.

          4                 MS. SIMON: Thank you, Councilman.

          5                 Good afternoon. I'd like to thank the

          6  Chair and the Committee members and Mr. Gurian and

          7  others who have worked so hard on this legislation.

          8                 I have submitted my written comments,

          9  but I thought I would address a little bit

         10  differently in person my experience with this law.

         11                 First of all, as you know, I do

         12  disability rights litigation and advising and I do

         13  it in employment but also in education and high

         14  stakes testing around the country, so I'm familiar

         15  with state and local laws around the country as

         16  well.

         17                 And among the issues that I find that

         18  keep coming up is the fact that a lot of

         19  definitional issues in the City law can be applied

         20  in many circumstances, in which many people don't

         21  necessarily expect them to be applied. And in some

         22  cases in education what has been held to be a

         23  pedagogical decision is in fact discrimination, and

         24  discrimination is not pedagogy. Discrimination is

         25  discrimination, and we need the definitions that are
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          2  in the more liberal construction of the statute to

          3  be applied in many circumstances that are not the

          4  sort of normal ones that most people consider.

          5                 The other issue is, I think to

          6  address this, the notion of the liberal construction

          7  requirement for independence, and how important that

          8  is. And I think it's extremely important that it be

          9  in the statute. If only because the United States

         10  Supreme Court continually now looks to the statutes

         11  and it tries to ignore regulations and it doesn't

         12  serve their purpose, they certainly ignore

         13  legislative guidance, and it's extremely important

         14  that that notion of independent construction be in

         15  the statute itself, so that it can be used as a

         16  cohesive force, not because it's just simple brought

         17  an amorphous, because I frankly think while language

         18  can always be tightened up, I don't think it's all

         19  that amorphous, but it's important to make the law

         20  hang together, and to communicate that in New York

         21  civil rights really matter, and that's something

         22  that we really need to stand behind, because as

         23  you've pointed out, and other people will, as well,

         24  around the country that's not happening, and we're

         25  losing ground rather than gaining ground and we need
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          2  to be more forceful about it, more clear that we

          3  really do mean it in the statute in this

          4  circumstance.

          5                 And then the other point I'd like to

          6  just make is, the notion of discrimination occurring

          7  in many ways that are not going to be addressed by

          8  these specific individual fixes, and by the time you

          9  get to the individual fix, many, many people have

         10  been harmed, and it can take years before you get to

         11  those individual fixes. We're still working on

         12  transportation, and the notions that people have

         13  about discrimination, I mean talk about not having

         14  education, just yesterday, I don't know if you read

         15  in the New York Sun, there is this outrageous column

         16  talking about how all these people with disabilities

         17  are taking too long to get on the bus, and why don't

         18  they just take Access A Ride, and, you know, I'm all

         19  for it, but not enough of those people have jobs.

         20  Well, they don't have jobs because they can't get to

         21  those jobs. And so this incredibly callous attitude

         22  still exists and it exists with relation to a lot of

         23  things, as you know, and we really need to make sure

         24  that this law makes a difference to people's lives.

         25  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well said.

          3                 Who would like to go next?

          4                 MS. ALVAREZ: Thank you. Thank you,

          5  Chairman, for this opportunity to testify. And thank

          6  you, Councilman Brewer, as well.

          7                 My name is Sarah Alvarez and I'm

          8  testifying on behalf of New York Lawyers for the

          9  Public Interest, and I work in the access to health

         10  care project there. And I'm not going to try -- I'm

         11  going to try not to repeat Craig's testimony today,

         12  but to kind of concentrate on what we think, why we

         13  think the independent construction is so important

         14  and why we think the liberal construction that's in

         15  the current human rights law that doesn't go far

         16  enough. And also just a particular area in which the

         17  federal courts and the interpretation of the law

         18  with the federal law and the state law is extremely

         19  important, and that is the area of language rights.

         20                 In our health care practice, we work

         21  with individuals who have been discriminated against

         22  on the basis of limited English proficiency.

         23                 And this is national origin

         24  discrimination, it's been interpreted by the federal

         25  courts to be national origin discrimination since
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          2  the 1970s.

          3                 However, the City Human Rights

          4  Division currently, even though they're supposed to

          5  construe the law liberally, they don't count natural

          6  origin discrimination on the basis of limited

          7  English proficiency to be discrimination that's

          8  protected by the City Human Rights Law.

          9                 So, we've had clients that have come

         10  to us that have wanted to avail themselves to the

         11  City Human Rights Law, who have been unable to

         12  because of the way that the law is being construed.

         13                 And language rights is kind of an

         14  interesting area, because it's one of those areas in

         15  which the federal law is actually helpful. We have

         16  very good federal law in terms of Title 6 under

         17  regulations that were promulgated under Title 6 that

         18  speak about the importance of language access and

         19  language rights.

         20                 The problem is that you can't enforce

         21  it at the federal level because of some severe

         22  decisions by the Supreme Court and recent decisions.

         23                 So, the people who have language

         24  access issues and live in New York City are kind of

         25  caught between a rock and a hard place because they
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          2  can't go to federal court to enforce their right,

          3  because only the attorney general could do that, and

          4  they can't go to the City Human Rights Commission to

          5  enforce their rights because the City Human Rights

          6  Commission does not -- they don't count national

          7  origin discrimination on the basis of language

          8  ability to be discrimination.

          9                 In order to fix this problem, we

         10  think it's very important that the law be

         11  independently construed. And it also be clear that

         12  the federal and state law be used as a floor but not

         13  a ceiling. So, that it's clear that when the law is

         14  helpful, such as in the area of language rights, the

         15  federal and state law can be used to assist

         16  individuals who need to avail themselves of the New

         17  York City Human Rights Law.

         18                 We also don't want people who would

         19  be limited by the recent rollback of federal, and

         20  federal civil rights to be harmed by it.

         21                 So, in my written testimony I have

         22  provided some examples of language that we think

         23  will be helpful. We very much support this bill and

         24  we very much support Craig's offers, and hope that

         25  you can continue to work towards them.
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          2                 Thanks.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you. You

          4  know, I also want to note that the Council, I think

          5  one of the areas where the Council has been

          6  particularly focused and effective, obviously there

          7  was the Equal Access Bill, for example, there's I

          8  think a keen understanding of the impact of language

          9  on people's lives and on people's rights. And this

         10  Committee often looks at questions of due benefits

         11  as well, and, you know, the obvious reality of many,

         12  many people, in particular children, are losing

         13  benefits because of language barriers. I appreciate

         14  you making that the central focus of your testimony.

         15                 MS. ALVAREZ: Sure. We just want those

         16  people to be able to use the Human Rights Law. So,

         17  thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         19                 Please.

         20                 MR. SULLIVAN: Thank you, Chairman

         21  DeBlasio, members of the City Council. My name is

         22  Kevin Sullivan. I'm the Advocacy Director for

         23  Habitat for Humanity in New York City.

         24                 Habitat for Humanity is a faith-based

         25  housing organization that is committed to the
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          2  elimination of substandard housing in all of its

          3  forms here in New York City and around the world. We

          4  in the Habitat movement have often found it is much

          5  easier to build with bricks and mortar than it is to

          6  build a sense of common humanity that will ensure

          7  that all people have a right to fair and decent

          8  housing.

          9                 But the struggle involves building

         10  both. We must work for both charity and justice or

         11  we'll have neither.

         12                 In our screening of thousands of

         13  applicants that apply for the few dozen homes that

         14  we build each year in New York, we see

         15  heart-wrenching stories of hardship for families

         16  seeking safe and affordable housing.

         17                 It is hard enough to try and find

         18  affordable housing in this City without being faced

         19  with the additional barriers of ignorance and

         20  bigotry.

         21                 We have tried in our advocacy efforts

         22  here in New York to build common ground for housing

         23  justice for all New Yorkers. Our five-point housing

         24  covenant platform identifies housing discrimination

         25  as an ongoing challenge to fulfilling a promise of
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          2  equitable housing policy. In the course of

          3  articulating a set of moral values and goals in our

          4  covenant, we seized upon Intro. 22, as a commitment

          5  to the preservation of civil rights it takes

          6  practical and concrete steps towards fair housing

          7  and civil rights enforcement.

          8                 In the eight months since launching

          9  our covenant campaign, we have collected over 2,500

         10  postcards, like this one, in which ordinary New

         11  Yorkers volunteers on our sites, families and our

         12  homes, business owners and faith leaders have signed

         13  to urge the Mayor to strengthen civil rights

         14  protections by introducing Intro. 22.

         15                 In our work we have found that

         16  housing discrimination is often a silent scourge

         17  that tears at the fabric of families and

         18  communities.

         19                 Unlike homelessness, it is not always

         20  easy to see and solutions are not as simple as

         21  building more housing. But it simply shouldn't be

         22  the case that so many people who feel that they've

         23  been discriminated against believe there is no help,

         24  and therefore don't do anything.

         25                 Most New Yorkers understand in a deep
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          2  personal way what it means to have the door closed

          3  in your face in your search for a job or an

          4  apartment.

          5                 We know discrimination when we see it

          6  and we know it exists. We are looking for your

          7  leadership to find concrete solutions. We have

          8  testified in favor of Intro. 22 before, and we

          9  believe that this bill deserves to be passed into

         10  law.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you, Mr.

         13  Sullivan.

         14                 Before Mr. Eisenberg goes, if I could

         15  actually say we have one omission and we'd like to

         16  just make a little room here on the panel for

         17  Kenneth Kimberling. My apology. I should have called

         18  you in the group. So, Mr. Eisenberg followed by Mr.

         19  -- You can all stay. Just get cozy there. We're all

         20  in a struggle together. Mr. Eisenberg.

         21                 MR. EISENBERG: Good afternoon, Chair.

         22  And thank you, Council, for the opportunity to

         23  address you this afternoon.

         24                 I just have a couple of comments in

         25  response to what I've heard this afternoon. I've
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          2  testified once before with regard to the importance

          3  of corrective legislation to correct that which the

          4  courts have taken away, that which we believed we

          5  had prior to the courts taking it away that happened

          6  in federal congress in 1991 with the Civil Rights

          7  Act of 1991, I believe that should happen here in

          8  this body for this Intro. 22.

          9                 Let me just say, I don't think there

         10  is any question that both the federal Appellate and

         11  Trial Courts, as well as the State Trial and

         12  Appellate Courts acknowledge the authority of the

         13  City Council to enact legislation that is broader

         14  than that enacted by the State and the federal

         15  government.

         16                 It is important to understand that

         17  the way the cases get interpreted goes something

         18  like this, if you have a case that says that state

         19  and federal law is exactly the same as the City law

         20  and the City law is exactly the same as the state

         21  and federal, people stop looking to the statute,

         22  people stop looking to the legislative history of

         23  the statute and people are quoting those cases

         24  repeatedly, and the cases that follow quote those

         25  old cases that get it wrong and we need to make
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          2  certain that they get it right. And the way they

          3  will get it right is by understanding that this law

          4  is different and broader than that which is existing

          5  under federal and State law.

          6                 With regard to any inconsistencies,

          7  there is nothing whatsoever inconsistent about

          8  construing this law independently of state and

          9  federal law and doing so liberally.

         10                 As a matter of fact, as I understand

         11  it, that's exactly what the initial Human Rights Law

         12  and New York City law was intended to do, and all we

         13  are trying to do is make that clear to the world, to

         14  the country, to the courts in this jurisdiction.

         15                 Let me also say that the Commissioner

         16  suggested that City law is in fact much broader than

         17  state and federal law, and there's no reason

         18  whatsoever not to make sure that everybody knows

         19  that.

         20                 With regard to the civil rights

         21  saying about encouraging in spirit and delivering in

         22  fact, it is very clear to me, and the membership of

         23  the national employment lawyers association that

         24  Intro. 22 in fact encouraged -- encourages in fact

         25  and delivers in spirit.
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          2                 The liberal construction of the law

          3  states to those construing this statute that it must

          4  be construed liberally, that it must be construed

          5  for its purpose, and you will find cases that have

          6  taken away that which we had two years ago, and it

          7  is now the sense in the courts that New York City

          8  law meant to take it away and that's exactly not

          9  what we meant to do.

         10                 Intro. 22 makes it clear that that's

         11  not the case.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I'd like to

         13  commend you. You've stated the case very clearly.

         14  That's a very helpful way to frame it as this debate

         15  goes forward.

         16                 MR. EISENBERG: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         18                 Mr. Kimberling.

         19                 MR. KIMBERLING: Thank you, Mr.

         20  Chairman.

         21                 Thank you, Council Member Brewer for

         22  allowing me to be here this afternoon.

         23                 My name is Kenneth Kimberling. I'm

         24  the legal director of the Asian-American Legal

         25  Defense and Education Fund. I've been a civil rights
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          2  attorney for over 35 years. I think what's critical

          3  about the construction provision is that it tells

          4  the world that the City is a leader in civil rights

          5  and not a follower. The courts have made this City a

          6  follower. It says, whatever the federal law says and

          7  whatever the State law, that's what the City law is.

          8                 We are in the courts just a tag

          9  along, when all the time we are the leaders in this

         10  City for the fight for civil rights. And that's why

         11  it's critical that this construction provision be

         12  enacted as it's written. And that it be enacted now,

         13  rather than a year from now.

         14                 This process has got to come to a

         15  quick conclusion so that the rights of people who

         16  are protected by this law, this City Human Rights

         17  Law, and have been protected, are protected by the

         18  Courts.

         19                 It's not enough that the Commissioner

         20  says that the Commission liberally construes it.

         21  It's critical that the judges hear from this Council

         22  and from this City that the courts must liberally

         23  construe it and not just make the City a follower.

         24                 The Commissioner says to you I don't

         25  want to have to come back year and again to have
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          2  amendments. This is the kind of general language

          3  that avoids that.

          4                 Yes, let's have specific changes when

          5  they're needed, but let's have a very clear

          6  statement that when the courts get this law, it is

          7  different, it is better, and it is the leading law

          8  on this issue.

          9                 Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I don't happen

         11  to be a lawyer, so sometimes I ask questions I don't

         12  know the answers to.

         13                 Are you surprised that the

         14  Commissioner would have hesitancy about a broader

         15  language?

         16                 MR. KIMERLING: I am. I'm dismayed,

         17  frankly.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: What do you

         19  think motivates that?

         20                 MR. KIMERLING: I just don't

         21  understand it. The law has already said liberally

         22  construe us, liberally construe it. That is the law,

         23  that is what she says she does. I can't understand

         24  why she would say don't do it. Don't make it clearer

         25  what liberal construction means.
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          2                 It's beyond me why she would say

          3  that. Absolutely.

          4                 You didn't see me, but I just dropped

          5  on my chair when she said that. I can't believe that

          6  she could say that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Council Member

          8  Brewer I know has questions.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: First of all,

         10  thank everybody for your testimony, because it makes

         11  a difference in terms of our being unable to make

         12  this law happen.

         13                 For Joanne Simon. When you are

         14  traveling or participating in courts, testifying and

         15  representing people in different courts around the

         16  United States, do you find that there is the ability

         17  to be more, to better represent your clients because

         18  there is a different scenario?

         19                 I don't know if the Disabled In

         20  Action discussion as to what goes on in California

         21  is typical. Obviously we're coast location, so maybe

         22  it is or isn't. So, I just wanted to understand why

         23  we're meeting such resistance, as you heard earlier,

         24  from our Commission.

         25                 MS. SIMON: Well, I'm not sure that my

                                                            85

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  response would be directly applicable to the

          3  Commission's rationale.

          4                 I do find, of course, California has

          5  excellent statutes that are very liberally

          6  construed. And the courts in California tend to

          7  understand California's law is meant to be liberally

          8  construed.

          9                 And there is currently a class action

         10  under California State law that's being heard, and

         11  they specifically state that they are a floor, not a

         12  ceiling, for example.

         13                 So, yes, I think that that's very

         14  much a different issue, and I think Jean is entirely

         15  correct.  As to why the Commission has the feelings

         16  that they have, I don't really know. It may be that

         17  they deal less with the courts, and I think that

         18  those of us who practice see the Court decisions

         19  misinterpreting deliberately, just sort of

         20  overlooking and misinterpreting the law, and it's

         21  not necessarily the Commission's interpretation. The

         22  Commission's interpretation doesn't even enter into

         23  it when you're in court --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right.

         25                 MS. SIMON:-- For the most part.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right.

          3                 Kevin Sullivan, first of all, thank

          4  you for the work on collecting all those signatures,

          5  and I'm just curious in terms of the individuals, we

          6  too hear about housing discrimination, and without

          7  the open housing center, which I kind of grew up

          8  with and which was around for a long time and where

          9  people felt they could, you know, get some relief,

         10  where do your clients or your people who are coming

         11  to you in the neighborhood, do they go to the

         12  Commission when they hear about housing

         13  discrimination? How do they handle it? Obviously,

         14  their first call might be to Habitat, but how do you

         15  advise them and how do they, you know, try to

         16  resolve their issue?

         17                 MR. SULLIVAN: I send them to Craig.

         18  No.

         19                 It's a real problem for us. This is

         20  not our area of expertise. We don't do counseling in

         21  fair housing issues. We do notify them about the

         22  Human Rights Commission, that they do have recourse

         23  there and give them a telephone number and website

         24  there. But we find ourselves in a bind, and that is

         25  that we provide one service which is very affordable
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          2  housing for certain people who qualify. But we see

          3  this groundswell of need that we can't possibly

          4  respond to. And for those very lucky few that are

          5  able to qualify on income and need for our program,

          6  there are thousands and thousands of others who are

          7  being forced out due to discrimination in many other

          8  causes.

          9                 So, right now we don't have a good

         10  answer, other than educating in whatever way we can

         11  about what's available. We would like to do more. I

         12  think probably posting notices would help. We would

         13  happily do it. We would download it from the

         14  Internet and post it in our office in all of our

         15  sites.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

         17                 And for Sarah Alvarez, what in terms

         18  of your clients? Obviously, they are fortunate that

         19  you're able to represent some of them, but how do

         20  they interface with the Commission, or do you find

         21  that there is any interface with the Commission?

         22                 MS. ALVAREZ: No, we find that there

         23  is not. I mean, that's our problem is that we're not

         24  able -- the Commission won't even take complaints

         25  from people who have been discriminated against on
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          2  the basis of limited English proficiency, because

          3  they simply say that their law and protection of

          4  national origin status does not include

          5  discrimination on the basis of language access.

          6                 So, really, I mean our language

          7  access practice, we don't have core options because

          8  we can't do it, we can't take them to Federal Court

          9  because there is no private right of action, and we

         10  can't take it to the Commission because the

         11  Commissioner refuses to take the complaints.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you all

         13  very much. I really appreciate your being here.

         14                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         15                 MS. ALVAREZ: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         17  Thank you very much for your testimony.

         18                 We have one more formal panel. It's a

         19  panel of one, and then we have a couple of folks who

         20  wanted to offer public testimony.

         21                 We welcome Tom Smith, good friend and

         22  a very patient person.

         23                 Thank you for waiting for your

         24  opportunity to testify. We want you to be inpatient

         25  in seeking the passage of the posting law, which as
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          2  you learned today will cost millions of dollars.

          3                 Each sign has to be handprinted, Tom,

          4  did you know that? Hand colored.

          5                 MR. SMITH: This is a very artistic

          6  City. Yes, that doesn't surprise me.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Hand colored

          8  with gold -- what is that?

          9                 MR. SMITH: Gold leaf.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Gold leaf,

         11  thank you. Each sign must have gold leaf. It's in

         12  the legislation you know.

         13                 MR. SMITH: Not the one that I helped

         14  draft.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Oh. Maybe

         16  there's been a misunderstanding. We welcome your

         17  testimony.

         18                 MR. SMITH: Actually, this model sign,

         19  which I've given you a copy of, the original a

         20  friend of mine did back in '94, and I took it to a

         21  local copy shop and it cost me 59 cents and I did a

         22  number of them, about 5,000 of them, I was ambitious

         23  back in '94, for about a penny a piece. Now, I'm

         24  sure with inflation it might have gone up to two

         25  cents a piece or even three, but anyways, I agree
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          2  with you that if they're buying or giving contracts

          3  that generous, I'm in the wrong business.

          4                 My name is Tom Smith, and I thank you

          5  for the Council today, for listening to me. I'm

          6  speaking today on behalf of the Stonewall Democratic

          7  Club. The former president of the club and a former

          8  spokesperson for the Coalition for Lesbian and Gay

          9  Rights, which fought for the inclusion of lesbian

         10  and gay rights into the Human Rights Law that passed

         11  in 1986.

         12                 And by the way, in favor of Intro.

         13  22, every time we were told that the Human Rights

         14  Law already included sexual orientation under

         15  sexual, sex discrimination, but when it went to

         16  court it was always interpreted it didn't. And then

         17  gender is supposed to cover gender expression and

         18  identity, and then when it went to court it didn't.

         19  And those were during the more liberal years of the

         20  courts and we can see the trend in the federal

         21  benches particularly are drifting more and more to,

         22  to the right, we'll just say.

         23                 I come at a time when the LGBT

         24  newspapers report bias related murders in both

         25  Brooklyn and in the Bronx, and even though a posting
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          2  sign educating people about their civil liberties

          3  will not stop a knife, a gun, it is a start.

          4                 It is a start for New York City to

          5  say in public that hate is not acceptable here, and

          6  you have a recourse if you have been harmed either

          7  by word, action or deed. The cost in human toll far

          8  outweighs the cost in bulk printing a few signs,

          9  even if it was as much as, you know, half a million.

         10  I personalize myself, but that's another, another

         11  issue.

         12                 I grew up in Staten Island in the

         13  sixties and seventies. My first experience to

         14  bias-related incidences were when I would go past a

         15  house that was burnt down, and it didn't happen

         16  once, and didn't happen twice, it happened at least

         17  two to three times a year, each time that I lived

         18  there, and in the newspaper, if it got into the

         19  newspaper, it was because some black or Latino

         20  family was moving in.

         21                 And you know, unfortunately I don't

         22  think that we've come in the past 35 years since

         23  then, as far as we'd like to have said.

         24                 You know, in Manhattan or in Brooklyn

         25  Heights, et cetera, people, you know, who are better
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          2  educated, et cetera, at least understand it's

          3  unacceptable to say bias language. You know, we walk

          4  around in a fairly comfortable bubble that

          5  everything else in the rest of the City is okay.

          6                 When I was 15, I went by a local

          7  house that had burn down and was told that a gay man

          8  had been living there, and that the neighborhood

          9  took care of it. Of course, that incident never was

         10  in the newspaper. And you know, bias-related

         11  violence is actually easier to see and to document,

         12  and it doesn't show up in the newspaper.

         13                 You know, when you're talking about

         14  people being fired from their job, people not

         15  getting credit at the bank, people not getting the

         16  same rights as other people, whether it's because of

         17  sexual orientation, gender identity, color of one's

         18  skin, faith, et cetera, if you belong to any of the

         19  protective categories, when you don't -- when you

         20  find yourself not being treated the same way, or you

         21  believe it, you always have that doubt in your mind

         22  that the next time something happens, that it wasn't

         23  because of the excuse that they give, because

         24  they're really getting good at giving good excuses

         25  when they let you go because of redundancy or
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          2  whatever the -- downsizing, et cetera, whatever

          3  excuses they give.

          4                 Also, you know, most people in this

          5  City don't know, even people who know that the Human

          6  Rights Commission exists, most people don't know

          7  that the Human Rights Law since '93 has covered

          8  bias-related harassment, you know, somebody who has

          9  a Swastica sprayed on their door, you can, can bring

         10  that, you know, as part of a civil suit where no

         11  criminal court has, intent has been found, which is

         12  a really important aspect because you don't have to

         13  have the high burden of proof the way that the State

         14  Hate Crimes Law does.

         15                 This is one of the most progressive

         16  laws in the country. It covers number of children,

         17  it covers sexual identity and expression, it's

         18  supposed to cover alienage, you know, national

         19  origin, alienage statute, citizenships status, and,

         20  yet, you just heard testimony for another bill that

         21  it's not being even enforced properly and people

         22  don't understand what they have the right to do. So,

         23  they go on with their lives many times, but, you

         24  know, they always feel cheated, and the law is

         25  there. The Council has been very good over the years
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          2  at listening to how the law needs to be expanded and

          3  to cover everyone's rights.

          4                 The sign does talk about being in

          5  multiple languages. This one is in English, Spanish

          6  and Chinese. We do want the signs to be read by

          7  everyone and understood by everyone.

          8                 A friend of mine, Eleanor Cooper, who

          9  is the former Executive Director of the Coalition

         10  for Lesbian and Gay Rights, used to tell me when we

         11  would stay up nights stuffing envelopes and so forth

         12  for the passage of the bill in '86, we fight for

         13  these rights of protection for those of us who are

         14  unable to fight for themselves. People with a lot of

         15  money who are strong can always find ways to fight

         16  for themselves. We fight for the poor and broken,

         17  and for those who are easily picked on and an easy

         18  target for those who would do them harm.

         19                 I urge you to pass Intro. 57 and make

         20  these signs be placed so that until Human Rights are

         21  a part of every day life.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         24  much, and thank you for very important personal

         25  reflections. We can't hear those enough to be
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          2  reminded of why we have to go further, and, you

          3  know, what the bureaucracy didn't figure out how to

          4  do you did with your own ingenuity, and this is

          5  actually I think a sign as a great example that

          6  would work right now that were posted all around the

          7  City. So, thank you for your leadership.

          8                 I wanted you to stay there because

          9  late, but not too late, we welcome Pauline Park.

         10  Pauline is a veteran testifier at this Committee.

         11                 If we had a Frequent Flyer, Frequent

         12  Mile status, you would have it with this Committee.

         13                 MS. PARK: Yes. I suspect I would be.

         14  I was here, I've testified, this must be the third

         15  time in two weeks.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Yes, I think

         17  you might be right.

         18                 MS. PARK: Becoming a regular, so...

         19                 In any case, Mr. Chairman and Council

         20  Member Brewer, my name is Pauline Park and I'm

         21  Co-chair of the New York Association for Gender

         22  Rights Advocacy, NYAGRA, which is the first

         23  statewide transgender advocacy organization in New

         24  York, which was founded in 1998.

         25                 As you know, we in NYAGRA work very
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          2  closely with you, and with your staff on Intro. 24,

          3  the transgender rights bill, that with your support

          4  passed your Committee and the full Council in April

          5  2002. It was signed into law later that month as

          6  Local Law 3 of 2002.

          7                 So, I'd like to take this opportunity

          8  to thank you for your crucial support for that

          9  landmarked legislation.

         10                 I'd also like to thank you for your

         11  co-sponsorship of Intro. 57, the bill that we're

         12  currently discussing, as well as to thank the lead

         13  sponsor, Council Member Alan Gerson, and the other

         14  sponsors of this very important legislation, who by

         15  the way, include two of the prime sponsors of Intro.

         16  24, Council Members Bill Perkins and Margarita

         17  Lopez.

         18                 By requiring the posting of notices

         19  of provisions of the Human Rights Law, Intro. No.

         20  57, will help educate the public about their rights

         21  as citizens of this great City.

         22                 As you know, transgendered and gender

         23  variant people face pervasive discrimination in

         24  employment, in housing and in public accommodations,

         25  and many are not aware of their rights under the
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          2  ordinance enacted in April 2002.

          3                 Hence, Intro. 57 would be especially

          4  helpful in informing the members of New York City's

          5  transgender community of their rights.

          6                 Allow me to make two small

          7  suggestions with regard to the text of the bill.

          8                 First, I think it would be helpful if

          9  the notices that are posted include a parenthetical

         10  reference, such as including gender identity and

         11  expression following the listing of gender as one of

         12  the protected categories.

         13                 And second, I'd like to suggest

         14  adding Korean to the list of languages explicitly

         15  mentioned in the text of the bill.

         16                 I recognize that the list of

         17  languages in the text of the bill is meant to be

         18  suggestive, rather than exhaustive, but as a

         19  transgendered woman of Korean birth who lives in

         20  Queens, which is the most ethically diverse county

         21  in the United States, we take great pride in that.

         22                 I believe that the posting of these

         23  notices in Korean would be especially useful for

         24  informing Korean Americans in New York City of their

         25  rights under City Human Rights Law.
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          2                 So, in closing, I commend you and the

          3  other members of the General Welfare Committee for

          4  holding a hearing on this important legislation, and

          5  I urge the Committee to vote for it.

          6                 I also urge the Speaker to bring it

          7  to the floor of the Council expeditiously for a

          8  vote, and I urge the Council to pass it.

          9                 Finally, I might also add that I urge

         10  this Mayor to sign it into law.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         13  Well, probably your presence is a good omen, because

         14  we had such success last time, hopefully it will

         15  extend to this time as well.

         16                 I just want to comment that I think

         17  we all could agree that some of the assumptions made

         18  by the Commission on cost might not be the best

         19  assumptions we've ever seen. You didn't hear the

         20  earlier testimony, Pauline, but I think the

         21  Commissioner is overestimating the cost.

         22                 On the question of which languages,

         23  you know, I think what Tom put together here points

         24  out that you can do multiple languages. You probably

         25  can't do 20 languages, I can't do ten languages, but

                                                            99

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  you can do multiple languages on one poster. And,

          3  again, if we were in a get to yes kind of dynamic

          4  here, we might say this would be the Citywide model,

          5  but we're also going to create regionalized models,

          6  if you will, for certain neighborhoods that would

          7  benefit, and just find a way to create, rather than

          8  just putting up a wall and saying we can't do ten

          9  languages or eight languages, therefore we can't do

         10  anything, perhaps the logical supportive way to look

         11  at it is to have a Citywide template and then have

         12  variations for certain neighborhoods that would best

         13  respond to those neighborhoods' needs. Again,

         14  something I don't think would break the bank and

         15  could be done with minimal difficulty.

         16                 MS. PARK: Yes. I, in fact, you know

         17  -- we worked, I worked as part of a small working

         18  group that worked with the City Human Rights

         19  Commission to produce a little card, basically

         20  postcard size, as you probably saw --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Yes.

         22                 MS. PARK: -- To alert transgendered

         23  people of their rights after that law was enacted.

         24                 I think it's exactly the way to go.

         25  You could have, obviously the demographic mix in
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          2  Queens is different from Brooklyn, which is

          3  different from Staten Island, and even Western

          4  Queens, or Eastern or Southeastern Queens. So, you

          5  could vary the template by borough or by subsection

          6  of the borough.

          7                 In my part of Queens, for example, I

          8  live in Jackson Heights, ably represented by Helen

          9  Sears, and the mix is basically Asian and Latino

         10  with Chinese, Korean and South Asian being the main

         11  population. So, you could make a poster or a flyer

         12  with that mix, which would be different, say, from

         13  Southeastern Queens or Central Brooklyn or what have

         14  you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Right.

         16                 MS. PARK: I don't see cost as a huge

         17  factor here, and I think that given the fact that so

         18  many people in the City aren't aware of their rights

         19  under laws currently, it frankly is not only

         20  important, it's also really in the interest of City

         21  agencies, including the City Human Rights Commission

         22  to alert people of their rights so that they can

         23  bring complaints forward of discrimination when

         24  those incidents occur.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.
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          2                 Council Member Brewer.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Very quick.

          4  Thank you both for your testimony, and thank you,

          5  Tom, for mentioning 22 also.

          6                 Do you ever send people to the

          7  Commission when their rights are violated, either

          8  one of you?

          9                 MS. PARK: Well, my organization

         10  NYAGRA does in fact send people to the Commission.

         11  In fact, some of you, you might have read in the New

         12  York Times last Saturday of the case that was

         13  settled, actually there was one case involving me

         14  and one case involving another plaintiff. And I

         15  personally have had good experience with the

         16  Commission, although other transgender people I have

         17  talked to haven't always had good experience. But we

         18  do send people to the Commission, but as I say in so

         19  many cases transgendered people will come up to me

         20  and say, am I protected under City Human Rights Law?

         21  And we are today in April 2002, April of 2005, three

         22  full years after the enactment of Intro. 24. And so

         23  the fact that people still aren't aware of this

         24  demonstrates to me the need to publicize, and it's

         25  really, frankly, if I may say so, the obligation of
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          2  the City and the City agencies, we as an

          3  organization have extremely limited resources. We

          4  certainly try our best working with the Commission

          5  and other City agencies to publicize this law.

          6                 So, yes, we do refer people to the

          7  Commission when they've experienced discrimination.

          8                 MR. SMITH: I have sent people to the

          9  Commission. If they have private resources, I

         10  actually tell them to try to go directly to Court.

         11  Most of the people who have, I've spoken with, don't

         12  have private resources and therefore had to go to

         13  the Commission. I actually sent my own mother there

         14  on behalf of my sister who is mentally ill.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         16  much to both of you. Thank you for your good works

         17  and for helping this Committee on a regular basis.

         18                 Lastly we have two folks for public

         19  testimony. Carl Ferrentino and David Helbraun.

         20                 MR. SMITH: Mr. Chairman, these two

         21  individuals asked me to not impersonate them but

         22  introduce them for a moment.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: We will break

         24  with precedent and allow an introduction.

         25                 MR. SMITH: It's not a big
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          2  introduction. Would you indulge me for 45 seconds

          3  more --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Yes, yes I

          5  will.

          6                 MR. SMITH:-- About some other issues

          7  that came up because the issue of not taking

          8  complaints has been a real issue, and the New York

          9  City Human Rights law, as it is written, is an as of

         10  right filing statute. It is illegal not to accept a

         11  complaint. Once you have accepted the complaint, you

         12  can dismiss it for lack of jurisdiction. But if you

         13  do it that way, then your actions as an agency are

         14  subject to review. You're not just disappeared into

         15  Never Never Land.

         16                 The disingenuousness

         17  administration-wise on notification is illustrated

         18  by the fact that we have spoken to HPD, and we've

         19  spoken to the Commission and said easy thing to do,

         20  you send out all this information, and the

         21  Department of Finance sends out mailings to every

         22  single property owner in the City, why not include

         23  materials on discrimination. It's been years, none

         24  of that has happened.

         25                 In your question about why oppose
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          2  this restoration of liberal construction, you

          3  remember what happened in 2003 when the

          4  Administration had a proposal, a direct proposal, to

          5  reduce protections for people with disabilities, and

          6  that generated something of a response, and with the

          7  assistance of this, and leadership of this

          8  Committee, that proposal was put down.

          9                 It is much easier for anyone or

         10  entity who thinks that things are currently going in

         11  a fine direction to let the dirty work be done by

         12  judges who are just treating the City law as a

         13  stepchild of state and federal law. You don't get

         14  your hands on it. And finally, there's a real

         15  concern. Employers and perhaps others are happy that

         16  there are many women and others who are harassed,

         17  who are kicked out of court because they've been

         18  told they haven't been harassed enough, and if laws

         19  are actually liberally construed, the current

         20  standard which requires severe or pervasive

         21  harassment would likely not be able to stand.

         22                 And I should say, I don't remember if

         23  I put it in my testimony that we think that there is

         24  clear law that there is no legitimate challenge with

         25  the City's authority to do the construction piece.
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          2                 Well, that was a lot of indulgence. I

          3  appreciate it. Thank you.

          4                 A lot of times, particularly on a

          5  bill like this, it all seems very abstract. You

          6  remember last time around the block seven months

          7  ago, there was a couple here who had been

          8  discriminated against in trying to by their Upper

          9  West Side co-op because they were unmarried. They

         10  could only be helped if there's a liberal

         11  construction provision at this point, specifying the

         12  problem in the Levin Decision.

         13                 But we've talked about what does it

         14  mean for the courts to have cut back on individual

         15  liability? How does that have an impact actually?

         16  Can't you just go after the business?

         17                 And Mr. Ferrentino and his attorney

         18  Mr. Helbraun, I think will be able to speak to that

         19  in a specific way.

         20                 MR. HELBRAUN: Thank you. Good

         21  afternoon. It's Carl Ferrentino, by the way.

         22                 And we're here to put a human face on

         23  this problem of State courts just basically blowing

         24  off City law and doing what they want. Carl has been

         25  victimized. He's been a victim of sexual
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          2  discrimination, based on sexual orientation, and

          3  right now his recourse is severely limited due to

          4  some cases that have been decided by the courts,

          5  specifically this Yankee's case, also known as

          6  Priori (phonetic). And Carl is going to tell you

          7  about his experience and then maybe I'll jump back

          8  and tell you how this is affecting his rights of

          9  redress.

         10                 So, Carl.

         11                 MR. FERRENTINO: Thank you. Basically

         12  since I've been a kid I've been discriminated

         13  against because of my sexuality. In high school my

         14  gym teacher, whoever performed well in gym, that's

         15  who got to beat me up that day. The gym teacher

         16  would actually pick who got to beat me up. So,

         17  eventually I moved to New York City to escape

         18  discrimination because, you know, if you're a gay

         19  man in New York, New York, California, Miami, those

         20  are the places to be, to have your rights protected.

         21  And I've been in the restaurant business for 22

         22  years, managing restaurants, and I've never really

         23  had problems. I've seen a lot of discrimination in

         24  my lifetime, but this is the first time it's

         25  directly affected me.
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          2                 I took a job as the manager of a

          3  brewery in Manhattan, and from the minute I was

          4  employed there things happened because I was gay in

          5  a brewery, you know, it's a man's environment, and,

          6  you know, I never brought my sexuality to work. I

          7  brought my professionalism to work, and I've won

          8  awards. I won awards from Time Out Magazine for

          9  Restaurant of the Year two years ago, and I really

         10  had a lot to contribute to the business. But after

         11  the owner would publicly discriminate against me in

         12  front of my staff, it opened up the doors for the

         13  staff to discriminate against me as well.

         14                 A bartender, when I caught him

         15  stealing, ripped my suit, punched me and called me

         16  "a faggot." Another manager, a straight manager,

         17  kept coming up to me, grinding his groin behind me,

         18  or if I bent over to pick up a pencil, he'd say,

         19  "Don't move." Things like this were happening. And

         20  I'm like I can't believe it's 2005 and I'm in New

         21  York City, you know, and this is happening to me. I

         22  basically grew up, like you're all familiar with the

         23  Matthew Sheppard case, I was the Matthew Sheppard

         24  that lived. And I just never experienced this in New

         25  York City the way I'm experiencing it now. And it
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          2  comes right down to the owner saying, you know, I'm

          3  basically doing the job of the general manager, and

          4  when we started this litigation she said right to my

          5  lawyer, she said, well, I can't have a faggot as a

          6  general manager, it's a brewery after all. And she

          7  goes, you know, one of those creative people. And I

          8  just think this is so important to make people

          9  liable for their actions, as more so as not from

         10  people suing and getting money and all that, but as

         11  a deterrent. People need to be liable for their

         12  actions, and it would make people think a lot

         13  quicker if they knew. Especially in the restaurant

         14  business where the main form of it is in Manhattan,

         15  housing and the restaurant business as far as

         16  employment, but, you know, you hit them in the

         17  pocketbook, then they're going to think twice. And I

         18  really, really can't stress to you enough how

         19  important this is, because people need to be liable

         20  for their own actions. If they know, oh, they can

         21  only sue the company, nothing is going to change.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 MR. HELBRAUN: Yes, the reason why
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          2  this is kind of important here is that you might

          3  say, well, just go after the company, it's a brewery

          4  after all, they must have some money. They're not

          5  even denying these allegations. What they're saying

          6  is, sure, come after us, we're not profitable. We

          7  have no money, and we'll either go bankrupt or we'll

          8  sell the business before you collect a dime.

          9                 So, there is no one on the hook right

         10  now. We can't go after the general manager because

         11  we're not allowed to, nor can you go after the chef

         12  who did the same things, and Carl is just, he's

         13  stuck.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, thank you

         15  very much for telling us your story. It helps us to

         16  understand, you know, what people have gone through

         17  and why we need to reexamine the laws we have now

         18  and improve on them. I appreciate your courage in

         19  doing so.

         20                 MR. FERRENTINO: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you to

         22  this panel. We appreciate it.

         23                 And I think that is it in terms of

         24  asking people to testify. So, this hearing of the

         25  General Welfare Committee is now adjourned.

                                                            110

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2                 (The following written testimony was

          3  read into the record.)

          4

          5

          6  Written Testimony Of:

          7  Jean Ryan

          8  Vice President

          9  Disabled In Action of Metropolitan New York

         10

         11                 My name is Jean Ryan. I'm here this

         12  afternoon on behalf of Disabled In Action to show

         13  our support for Intro. 22. Disabled In Action is a

         14  civil rights organization committed to ending

         15  discrimination against people with disabilities.

         16                 Founded in 1970, DIA fights to

         17  eliminate the barriers that prevent us from enjoying

         18  full equality in American society.

         19                 We seek to raise consciousness among

         20  people with or without disabilities concerning

         21  ableism, paternalism and derogatory attitudes, as

         22  well as laws and customs that oppress disabled

         23  individuals.

         24                 We look to enact and enforce

         25  effective legislation to promote our ability to live
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          2  independently.

          3                 I wanted to talk today about the

          4  problem of landlords who often reject people who are

          5  able to make their rent in ways other than from a

          6  paycheck. For example, many landlords have a policy

          7  against permitting a parent or other relative to

          8  co-sign a lease, or be a guarantor on a lease.

          9  Reasonable accommodation under existing law should

         10  mean that a landlord has to change that policy in

         11  the case of a person with a disability. To do so

         12  causes no harm to the landlord: he is assured of the

         13  rent. Nevertheless, landlords refuse to do so,

         14  causing even more apartments to be off-limits to

         15  people with disabilities.

         16                 If a person with a disability brought

         17  this kind of case in federal court in California, he

         18  or she would win. If the person with a disability

         19  brought this kind of case in Federal Court in New

         20  York, he or she would lose because the court

         21  dismisses this problem as being only "economic

         22  discrimination." The City Human Rights Law offers an

         23  means independent of any particular version of

         24  federal law by which to vindicate the rights of

         25  qualified applicants. But it will only work if the
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          2  law is amended, as is proposed by Intro 22, to

          3  require courts to interpret the local law

          4  independent of federal law, with a view towards

          5  liberally interpreting the statute to accomplish its

          6  broad objectives.

          7                 Intro 22 is designed to make sure

          8  that we have the tools necessary to wage an

          9  effective fight against discrimination. There has

         10  already been too much delay. This should be passed.

         11                 (Hearing concluded at 3:24 p.m.)
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